
Town of Reading 

Meeting Posting with Agenda 

This Agenda has been prepared in advance and represents a listing of topics that the chair reasonably anticipates will be discussed 

at the meeting. However the agenda does not necessarily include all matters which may be taken up at this meeting. 

Page | 1 

2018-07-16 LAG 

Board - Committee - Commission - Council: 

Permanent Building Committee Killam School Building Committee 

Date:  2024-07-22 Time:  7:00 PM    

Building:  Reading Town Hall    Location:  Select Board Meeting Room

Address:  16 Lowell Street Agenda:  

Purpose:  General Business 

Meeting Called By: Jacquelyn LaVerde on behalf of Chair Carla Nazzaro 

Notices and agendas are to be posted 48 hours in advance of the meetings excluding 

Saturdays, Sundays and Legal Holidays. Please keep in mind the Town Clerk’s hours of 

operation and make necessary arrangements to be sure your posting is made in an 

adequate amount of time. A listing of topics that the chair reasonably anticipates will be 

discussed at the meeting must be on the agenda. 

All Meeting Postings must be submitted in typed format; handwritten notices will not be accepted. 

Topics of Discussion: 

This meeting will be held in-person in the Town Hall Select Board Meeting Room and remotely via 
Zoom: 

Join Zoom Meeting  
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89241571093 
Meeting ID: 892 4157 1093  
One tap mobile  
+16465588656,,89241571093# US (New York)
+16465189805,,89241571093# US (New York)
Dial by your location
• +1 646 558 8656 US (New York)
• +1 646 518 9805 US (New York)
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kAYqz1eB

AGENDA: 
• Call to Order

• Public Comment

• KSBC Liaison Reports
• Killam Student Introductions

• Designer Update:
o Review MSBA PDP Comments and Responses
o Review Draft PSR Submission
o Review any Questions or Concerns for the Preferred Schematic Design (Vote to

happen on 08/05/24)

• Vote on Preferred Enrollment Scenario (Full Pre-K or Partial Pre-K)

• Vote to Confirm Options to be Evaluated
• Review and Discuss Recent Appointments to KSBC along with Committee Member

Formation and Role of the Chair and Committee
• Vote of Acknowledgement of New Appointees by the PBC Appointment Committee

• Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes

• Future Agenda Items and Next Meeting Dates
• KSBC Reorganization

• Adjourn

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89241571093
https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kAYqz1eB


ATTACHMENT A 

MODULE 3 – PRELIMINARY DESIGN PROGRAM REVIEW COMMENTS 

District: Town of Reading   

School: J. Warren Killam Elementary School 

Owner’s Project Manager: Colliers Project Leaders NE, LLC 

Designer Firm: LaVallee Brensinger Architects 

Submittal Due Date: July 7, 2024   

Submittal Received Date: May 20, 2024   

Review Date: May 20, 2024, – July 2, 2024   

Reviewed by: M. Esdale, J. Caron, V. Dagkalakou, C. Forde, C. Alles 

 

Draft responses from Reading Public Schools (RPS), the Killam School Building Committee (KSBC), and 

the design team are provided in red below. 

 

Items highlighted in yellow are pending completion. 

____________________________________________________________________________________  

MSBA REVIEW COMMENTS 

The following comments1
 on the Preliminary Design Program (“PDP”) submittal are issued pursuant  

to a review of the project submittal document for the proposed project presented as a part of the  
Feasibility Study submission in accordance with the MSBA Module 3 Guidelines.   

3.1 PRELIMINARY DESIGN PROGRAM 

Overview of the Preliminary Design Program Submittal Complete Provided;   
Refer to   

comments   
following   

each   
section 

Not   
Provided;   

Refer to   
comments   
following   

each 
section 

Receipt 
of  

District
’s   

Respon
se;  To 

be filled  
out by   

MSBA Staff 

OPM Certification of Completeness and Conformity ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

Table of Contents ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

3.1.1 Introduction ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

3.1.2 Educational Program ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

3.1.3 Initial Space Summary ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

3.1.4 Evaluation of Existing Conditions ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

3.1.5 Site Development Requirements ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

3.1.6 Preliminary Evaluation of Alternatives ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

3.1.7 Local Actions and Approvals Certification(s) ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 



3.1.8 Appendices ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

 

 
1 The written comments provided by the MSBA are solely for purposes of determining whether the submittal documents, analysis process, proposed  planning 
concept and any other design documents submitted for MSBA review appear consistent with the MSBA’s guidelines and requirements, and are  not for the purpose 
of determining whether the proposed design and its process may meet any legal requirements imposed by federal, state or local law,  including, but not limited to, 
zoning ordinances and by-laws, environmental regulations, building codes, sanitary codes, safety codes and public  procurement laws or for the purpose of 
determining whether the proposed design and process meet any applicable professional standard of care or any  other standard of care. Project designers are 
obligated to implement detailed planning and technical review procedures to effect coordination of design  criteria, buildability, and technical adequacy of project 
concepts. Each city, town and regional school district shall be solely responsible for ensuring that  its project development concepts comply with all applicable 
provisions of federal, state, and local law. The MSBA recommends that each city, town and  regional school district have its legal counsel review its development 
process and subsequent bid documents to ensure that it is in compliance with all  provisions of federal, state and local law, prior to bidding. The MSBA shall not be 
responsible for any legal fees or costs of any kind that may be incurred  by a city, town or regional school district in relation to MSBA requirements or the 
preparation and review of the project’s planning process or plans and  specifications. 

 

3.1.1 INTRODUCTION 

Provide the following Items Complet
e;  No 

response  
required 

Provided;   
District’s   
response   
required 

Not   
Provided;   
District’s   
response   
required 

Receipt 
of  

District
’s   

Respon
se;  To 

be filled  
out by   

MSBA Staff 

1 Summary of the Facility Deficiencies and 
Current  S.O.I. 

☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

2 Date of invitation to conduct a Feasibility Study 
and  MSBA Board Action Letter 

☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

3 Executed Design Enrollment Certification ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

4 Narrative of the Capital Budget Statement 
and  Target Budget 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

5 Project Directory with contact information ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

6 Updated Project Schedule ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

 

 

MSBA Review Comments: 

3) A copy of the executed Design Enrollment Certification was not provided. In response to these  
review comments, please provide a copy of the executed Design Enrollment Certification. 

A copy of the executed Design Enrollment Certification is provided as an attachment. 

Additionally, the information provided in the introduction narrative states:   

“The following enrollment options were defined and agreed upon to be evaluated as part of the  
Killam Elementary School feasibility study:   

• “Enrollment Option 1 - Grades Pre-K-5, 635 Students. This option consolidates the Pre K 

programs district-wide, adding 180 Preschool students to the 455 K-5 students.”   



• “Enrollment Option 2, Grades Pre-K-5, 515 Students. This option maintains the current  

Pre-K program which is distributed across sites in the district. In this option we planned  
for 60 Pre-K students at Killam.” 

Please note that the District has executed a Design Enrollment with the MSBA based on an  
enrollment of no more than 455 students, in grades K-5 for the J. Warren Killam Elementary  
School. As previously stated in the Enrollment Letter, dated January 12, 2023, for the J. Warren  
Killam Elementary School project, the MSBA understands that the District would like to consider  
consolidation options that would relocate the Pre-K students from the J. Warren Killam  
Elementary School, the Wood End Elementary School, and Reading High School to the J.  
Warren Killam Elementary School. Although the MSBA will recognize the potential to include a  
variation to the number of anticipated pre-kindergarten students, the design enrollment will  
continue to be based on no more than 455 students in grades K-5. Please acknowledge. 
 

Acknowledged. The design enrollment will be 455 students in grades K-5. In addition, the  
District would like to consider  a consolidation option that would relocate a projected enrollment 
of 180 Pre-K students from multiple locations in the district to the Killam School. 

4) The information provided indicates that the estimated total project cost for this project could  
be up to $144 million. For reference, the OPM Request for Services indicated an estimated total  
project cost range of $62.5-$125 million, and the Designer Request for Services indicated an  
estimated construction cost range of $60-$100 million. In response to these review  comments, 
describe this variation and provide information that indicates that the District has  discussed 
and acknowledged the increase in estimated costs. Also, please indicate how the  District and 
design team intend to maintain the District’s project budget through schematic  design. 

 

The preliminary project cost estimates were prepared without detailed information about the scope of the 

project, without the support of a design team to define the scope, and without an estimator to estimate the 

construction cost. The design team has defined the scope and estimated the project based on conservative 

assumptions. The District has discussed and acknowledged the increase in estimated cost. Moving 

forward, the team will conduct value engineering as needed in order to keep the project on budget. 

 

Additionally, in response to these review comments, please provide the District’s target total  
project budget for the proposed project.   
 
The project budget will be established in the SD. The District and KSBC are comfortable with 
considering the projected project costs of the estimates prepared to date, the highest of those being a 
project cost of $137M. 

5) The Project Directory provided does not include information regarding the MSBA staff  
assigned to the J. Warren Killam Elementary School project. Please note that Veatriki  
Dagkalakou is the assigned MSBA project manager and Jennifer Flynn is the assigned project  
coordinator. Please acknowledge and update the Project Directory in future submittals.   

Additionally, the contact information for the following School Building Committee members was  
not provided with the submittal:   

• Superintendent of Schools;   

• Town Manager;   

• Director of Facilities;   



• Director of Operations; and,   

• Principal.   

Please update the information and provide an updated Project Directory in future submittals. 
 

See attached updated Project Directory. This will be included in future submittals. To be provided 
by Colliers. 

6)The information provided in the Project Schedule for the Facilities Assessment Subcommittee  
(“FAS”) meeting date, indicates that the District is targeting the September 25, 2024 FAS  
meeting. Please note since the FAS meeting agendas are not known at this time, the District  
should carry both the September 11, 2024 and September 25, 2024 FAS meeting dates associated  
with the October 30, 2024 MSBA Board of Directors meeting in its overall project schedule.   

Additionally, the information provided in the Project Schedule indicates the District is planning  
on submitting the DESE submittal to the MSBA on October 4, 2024. However, the Schematic  
Design submittal is planned to be submitted to the MSBA on February 10, 2025. Please note and  
acknowledge that the DESE submittal is part of the Schematic Design submittal, and a separate  
earlier submission is not required.   

In response to these review comments, please provide an updated Project Schedule that aligns  
with Module 3 and 4 Submittal requirements.   
 

See attached updated Project Schedule. To be provided by Colliers. 

No further review comments for this section. 

3.1.2 EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM . 

Provide a summary and description of the existing educational program, and the new or expanded  
educational vision, specifications, process, teaching philosophy statement, as well as the District’s  
curriculum goals and objectives of the program. Include description of the following items: 

Provide the following Items Complet
e;  No 

response  
required 

Provided;   
District’s   
response   
required 

Not Provided;  
District’s 
response  
required 

Receipt 
of  

District
’s   

Respon
se;  To 

be filled   
out by 
MSBA  
Staff 

1 Grade and School Configuration Policies ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

2 Class Size Policies ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

3 School Scheduling Method ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

 

4 Teaching Methodology and Structure  

a) Administrative and Academic   

Organization/Structure 
☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

b) Curriculum Delivery Methods and Practices   ☐ ☐ 



c) English Language Arts/Literacy ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Mathematics ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

e) Science ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

f) Social Studies ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

g) World Languages ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

h) Academic Support Programming Spaces ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

i) Student Guidance and Support Services ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

5 Teacher Planning and Professional Development ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

6 Pre-kindergarten ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

7 Kindergarten ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

8 Lunch Programs ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

9 Technology Instruction Policies and 
Program  Requirements 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

10 Media Center/Library ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

11 Visual Arts Programs ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

12 Performing Arts Programs ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

13 Physical Education Programs ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

14 Special Education Programs ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

15 Vocation and Technology Programs  

 a) Non-Chapter 74 Programming ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

 b) Chapter 74 Programming ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

16 Transportation Policies ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

17 Functional and Spatial Relationships ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

18 Security and Visual Access Requirements ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

 

 

MSBA Review Comments: 

In response to these review comments address the comments below. Additionally, as part of the  
District’s Preferred Schematic Report (“PSR”) submittal, include (2) copies of the updated  
educational program, (1) redlined copy and (1) clean copy. The updated educational program  
must address the comments below, include District updates, provide a Designer response for  
each component of the educational program, and align with the District’s Preferred Schematic.  
Please acknowledge. 

Acknowledged. The updated educational program will be provided as part of the PSR submittal. 

2) The information provided on page 9 of 49 states:   

“While the district does not have an official policy for class size caps, guidance from the  
Reading School Committee has traditionally been to maintain kindergarten to grade 2  
classes between 18 and 22 students and grades 3-5 classes between 18 to 24 students.” 

 
Please note and acknowledge that MSBA guidelines are based on 18 students per classroom for  
kindergarten, and 23 students per classroom for grades 1-5.   



 
The district acknowledges the MSBA guidelines are based on 18 students per classroom for 
kindergarten, and 23 students per classroom for grades 1-5. 

Additionally, the information provided regarding the classroom sizes states:   

“In addition to maintaining smaller class sizes, we feel it is important to maintain the  
same number of classes per grade level as students matriculate through the building. As  
we progress through the phases of the MSBA process, we will also develop a plan for  
potential redistricting. This would not likely include any major shifts, but instead, entail  
minor shifting some school boundary assignments.”   

In response to these review comments please provide additional information that describes the  
District’s plan for potential redistricting.   

The District's approach to managing student enrollment and class sizes involves evaluating 
class sizes when new students enroll and making necessary boundary adjustments to balance 
class sizes across the district. It is important to note that this does not reflect a shift in 
boundary assignments. Instead, it is a responsive measure to particular enrollments, consistent 
with our established practices. 

This process allows us to maintain balanced class sizes and ensure that all students receive the 
necessary resources and attention. Our method of handling enrollments and class sizes has 
always been based on this responsive approach, and we plan to continue with this strategy. 

3) The information provided on page 24 of 309 states: 

“We are not considering additional specials at this time. However, we believe that  
including the STE room and Media Center will allow us to expand our library/media  
special and incorporate more STEAM based activities and lessons into our school  
curriculum and culture on a daily basis. Having the adequate space and materials for  
science will allow general education teachers to delve more deeply into our NoAtom  
Science Curriculum.”   

In response to these review comments, please review and respond to the following:   

• Describe how students and teachers will be engaged in project-based learning or  

activities that will make effective use of STEM spaces and provide any project-based  
principles that have been or will be incorporated in instructional activities in the  
curriculum or as part of professional development.   

• Describe why project-based learning activities are better suited in smaller classroom  

spaces rather than in larger General Classrooms.   

• Provide additional information and examples on how, when, and where the teachers can  

work collaboratively to plan project-based activities.   

• Describe the District’s plan to include art, music, and physical education teachers in the  

planning process.   

 

The STE program is already staffed, utilized, and in place as a fully operational program. There 
is adequate space to maintain the ongoing program where students are currently taking various 
courses and participating in activities. Looking forward, there is a push for more project-based 
learning opportunities within the program. Students and teachers will be engaged in project-



based learning activities that effectively utilize STEM spaces, incorporating principles such as 
inquiry-based learning, collaborative projects, and real-world problem-solving into the 
curriculum and professional development. These activities are better suited to smaller classroom 
spaces, which provide a more intimate and flexible environment conducive to hands-on, 
interactive learning experiences. 

 

Teachers will have designated times and spaces for collaborative planning of project-based 
activities, ensuring a cohesive and integrated approach across subjects. The District plans to 
include art, music, and physical education teachers in the planning process, recognizing the 
importance of a holistic approach to education that fosters creativity and physical well-being 
alongside academic achievement. Examples of collaborative efforts include cross-disciplinary 
projects, shared planning sessions, and professional development workshops focused on 
integrating project-based learning principles. 

4a) The information provided states: 

“In order to provide and plan for all students' instruction, educators in the district are   
encouraged to use both formal and informal assessment. Benchmark assessments provide   

teachers with student learning data and are conducted multiple times a year.”   

In response to these review comments, please review and respond to the following:   

• Describe the assessment tool used for these benchmark assessments and clarify if these  

are limited to ELA and mathematic programs.   

• Further describe if these assessments apply to students in project-based or multi 

disciplinary instruction. 
• Describe the frequency of the assessments of student learning in project-based and multi 

disciplinary instruction.   

• The information provided proposes “front yard” breakout common areas shared by  grade 

level neighborhoods. In response to these review comments, please provide further  
information that describes how these areas will be staffed and scheduled to accommodate  
large group gatherings and independent student work. 

 

We employ two benchmark assessments for literacy.  The first is the Independent Reading Level 
Assessment (IRLA) which is utilized with students in kindergarten through grade 5.  This 
assessment unpacks for teachers and students the skills/knowledge that are newly required by text 
at each level.  It is individualized for each student and administered by classroom teachers one to 
one.  The teacher completes an initial assessment for all students in September of each school 
year.  Then students are regularly monitored through the IRLA based on teacher observations of 
student work.  Teachers update each student’s IRLA approximately every two weeks. 

 

The second literacy assessment is the Dynamic Indicators of Basic Early Literacy Skills (DIBELS) 
which is utilized with students in kindergarten through grade 3.  This assessment meets the 
Massachusetts early screening requirements while providing staff with valuable information 
needed to ensure all students are making progress in important early literacy skills.  The DIBELS 
is administered three times a year by the literacy specialist in one to one setting. 

 

For mathematics, the Assessing Math Concepts (AMC) tool is utilized with students in 
kindergarten to grade 2.  The AMC monitors student development of mathematical concepts and 
is administered by classroom teachers, individual to students, two times a year.  Students who do 
not meet the grade level benchmark are assessed an additional time.  A district-developed math 
assessment is utilized for students in grades three through five.  The assessment was developed by 

Commented [Olivia Le1]: @jenni.katajamaki@lbpa.co
m @mike@mlpid.com Can you review this section to 
see if it makes sense to what is being asked? I am 
trying to pull from our original document to respond 

Commented [jenni.kat2]: Sounds good to me, but 
@mike@mlpid.com please review for educational 
language. 



a team of teachers and aligned with the mathematics standards taught in each grade level.  It 
utilizes a format that is similar to the state assessment, MCAS.  The assessment for grades three 
through five is administered twice each year.  In the 2024-2025 school year, we will be piloting a 
new benchmark assessment for mathematics, i-Ready.  Depending on the results of the pilot, i-
Ready may replace the district-developed assessment for grades three through five. 

 

Currently, we focus benchmark assessments in the areas of literacy and mathematics at the 
elementary level.  We do not administer benchmark assessments in other subject areas, although 
teachers closely monitor student progress throughout the year through a variety of formative and 
summative assessments. At the conclusion of a project, students receive feedback from teachers 
about progress towards learning outcomes. One way project based learning and multi 
disciplinary instruction is assessed is through the use of teacher created rubrics. A rubric is a 
scoring guide that outlines the areas to be assessed and sets a clear expectation for performance 
in that area.  Often, teachers utilize student friendly rubrics that are given to students as they 
complete projects.  This provides students with clarity about expectations and allows them to 
adjust their work to meet those expectations. 

 

The “front yard” breakout spaces are intended to serve as common spill out space where students 
and educators can collaborate in planned activities or impromptu educational experiences. These 
spaces are intended to be shared and used throughout the day, more as a direct extension of the 
actual classrooms. As such, we will not be staffing these spaces. Instead, we will look for the 
design team to help us provide visibility and transparency from the classrooms into these front 
port areas so students are directly supervised. Classroom teachers, specialists, and support staff 
will work together to share these spaces appropriately. At times, if a grade level wants to set up a 
science experiment or have a large group meeting in the shared space, they may coordinate to 
organize the appropriate time to use the space. 

4b) The information provided states:   

" Having the adequate space and materials for science will allow general education  
teachers to delve more deeply into our NoAtom Science Curriculum.”   

In response to these review comments, please describe the teacher planning times and activities  
that will be needed to support the NoAtom program.   

 

The district would like to correct “NoAtom” as the program is titled “KnowAtom”. 

 

A designated space for science instruction will support teachers in the set up and planning of 
science instruction.  The space will be utilized for hands-on science lessons, which often take 
additional space and require a unique set of materials.  Having a STEM space will enable 
teachers to prepare the required materials for hands-on learning without needing to repurpose 
other classroom spaces, leading to more effective use of time on learning.  It will also allow 
teachers to collaborate with other teachers in the same grade level to share the set up space and 
minimize redundancy in the provisioning of materials.  A specialized STEM space can provide 
enhanced resources that do not fit in the general classroom or require additional time to set up.  
This will greatly aid teachers by maximizing their planning time and boosting their ability to work 
collaboratively with other teachers to plan for high-quality science instruction. 

4g) The information provided states:   

“There is no world language program offered at Killam. While there is the hope to provide  
world language programming in the future, there are no concrete plans yet to make this a  
possibility. Currently, in Reading Public Schools, world language instruction begins in grade  



7. The district has been engaged in a curriculum review process for grades 7-12, but as of yet,  
no initiatives have been begun to start world language in elementary school.”   

If a world language program were to be added in the future, please consider encouraging the English  
Language Learners (“ELL”) students to share expressions, customs, and stories from their native  
language with their native-English classmates.   

If a world language program is added in the future, we will consider encouraging English Language 
Learners (ELL) students to share expressions, customs, and stories from their native languages with 
their native-English classmates. 

4h) The information provided describes the Multilingual Learner (“MLL”) program and states that  
the program envisions two separate half-size classrooms to teach and test small groups in a well-lit,  
distraction-free environment (soundproofing if possible). In response to these review comments, please  
describe the following: 

• The District’s plan to encourage multilingual students and their families to share their  

cultural and linguistic experiences and skills with the school community, if any.   

• The District’s plan to allocate spaces and time for the students and their families to  

contribute their knowledge and experiences of the school and the community, if any.   

The Killam Elementary School encourages multilingual students and their families to share their 
cultural and linguistic experiences and skills with the school community.  Having designated 
spaces within the school building to display information about the cultures and languages of the 
students will be important in allowing students and families to see themselves reflected in the 
school community and for all students and families to learn about the variety of cultures and 
languages represented in the school community.  The community and gathering spaces in the 
school building will also allow for cultural events and activities that welcome all students and 
families into the school community.  Additionally, ensuring these spaces have good acoustics and 
adequate space is important because multilingual parents/guardians may utilize translation tools 
when attending evening presentations and events such as Back-to school night and orientations. 

The dedicated space for ESL instruction is essential as it allows MLL students to have a 
comfortable, predictable and enjoyable learning environment. A student’s sense of belonging in 
a school community is impacted by where and how the student receives instruction. Having such 
a space to learn that is designed for MLL students will communicate the value placed on their 
education and their acceptance into the school community.  This will also extend to the families 
of MLL students, as it communicates that ESL instruction is an important school priority which 
will support their ability and comfort level in sharing their knowledge and experiences with school 
staff. 

Additionally, please provide further information on whether the Extended Day program follows  
a tuition-based enrollment. If so, please describe if the District has considered a plan to ensure  
families who cannot afford the tuition to the extended day program could participate.   

The Extended Day program does follow a tuition-based enrollment. Please find here a link to our 
2024-2025 approved fees in which the Extended Day fees model is listed. Families who have 
financial concerns about the Extended Day fees are encouraged to apply for financial assistance 
in which they may qualify for free or reduced rates.   

Furthermore, in response to these review comments, please describe if the District provides  
resources and support for students and their families for students in grade above Kindergarten,  
who have not been in school prior to arriving in Reading. 

The district has a Multilingual Learner Department staffed with a MLL Program Coordinator, 

Commented [Mike Piro3]: @Olivia.Lejeune@reading.
k12.ma.us we will be submitting this as a word or PDF 
file, so you won't be able to include links like this. I think 
you have several like this throughout the document 
_Assigned to Olivia.Lejeune@reading.k12.ma.us_ 

Commented [Olivia Le4]: Does MSBA review in 
printed format? If they review as a PDF or word, the 
links will convert over 

Commented [jenni.kat5]: We only send one printed 
copy; presumably everyone is reviewing the PDF 
version. I think the links are OK. 

https://www.reading.k12.ma.us/en-US/business-office-c09b29bd/2024-2025-school-year-approved-fees-ad5d320e


five MLL teachers in grades K-12 and a MLL Family Liaison. This team provides resources 
and support to students and families arriving in Reading who may not have been in school 
prior. Please click here to learn more about resources and support. 

4i) In response to these review comments, please describe the District’s plan to include staff 
and  students in potential involvement and encouragement of ideas for the facility upgrades or  
changes that could enhance their program and promote greater integration with the other  
programs and students that will be in the proposed facility, if any.  

The district has identified a small group, the “Educational Leadership Team,” which includes 
the superintendent, principal, and 4-6 staff members, who provide ongoing design feedback to 
the design team. In addition, the design team met with user groups including every staff member 
at the Killam school, and small groups of students, during the programming phase. The design 
team will meet with these groups during the SD and DD, and CD phases for ongoing feedback. 

5) Provide additional information regarding the District’s plan to provide professional  
development opportunities to prepare for a newly designed facility; including how the District is 

preparing to effectively utilize the renovated or new facility, current and planned preparations  
before and after the opening of the proposed project. Also, please describe whether the District  
has considered providing staff flexibility in modifying their schedules in conjunction with their   
colleagues as they develop and try out project-based and multi-disciplinary instruction to  
promote skills through investigation, hands-on and applied experiences. 
As the design progresses, we will seek ways to provide professional development to 
ensure that teachers are prepared to effectively use the new building from day one. This 
will be achieved through both pre-occupancy and post-occupancy workshops, offering 
opportunities to support teachers and encourage innovative thinking about practice and 
curriculum. 
 
The District has indeed considered providing staff with additional time for collaboration 
as they develop and implement project-based and multi-disciplinary instruction. We 
currently support this by: 

● Offering paid opportunities for teachers to collaborate over non-school vacations. 
● Providing substitute coverage to free up teachers for collaborative planning. 
● Utilizing existing planning time and professional development sessions. 

 
These practices are already in place and are documented in our current processes. For 
further details, please refer to the ARCore section. 

Additionally, the MSBA encourages the District to continue to use the workshop model beyond  
the move-in date to allow teachers to fully learn to use the renovated or new facilities. 

The district acknowledges the encouragement from MSBA to continue to use the workshop 
model beyond the move-in date to allow teachers to fully learn to use the renovated or new 
facilities. 

Also, as part of the professional development and pre-occupancy workshops, please consider  
encouraging teachers to use the opportunity to review and consider new curriculum  
collaborations, applications and approaches. 

The district will consider encouraging teachers to use the opportunity to review and consider 
new curriculum  collaborations, applications and approaches. 

 

6) The information provided on page 38 of 309 states: 

https://www.reading.k12.ma.us/en-US/teaching-learning-91a7d2a0/el-department-0dbb62a7


“The program at RISE is designed to support the learning and growth of preschoolers  
with and without disabilities. Our classrooms are representative of a wide range of  
developmental needs. All preschool classrooms are multi-age, and students may enter  
when they turn three years old.” 

Please confirm that all spaces dedicated to the RISE program are for Pre-Kindergarten students  
only. Please refer to review comments in Section 3.1.3 and note that all programs dedicated to  
the support of the Pre-Kindergarten classrooms must be relocated in the “Other” category.   

The district would like to confirm all spaces dedicated to the RISE program are for Pre-
Kindergarten students only. 

7) In response to these review comments, please describe if the District has considered a plan to  
ensure families who cannot afford the tuition to the Kindergarten program could participate. 

Families who have financial concerns about the Kindergarten tuition are encouraged to apply 
for financial assistance in which they may qualify for free or reduced rates. On a similar note, the 
School Committee has committed to a plan over the last several years to decrease the yearly 
kindergarten tuition eventually bringing it to $0 allowing for free universal full day kindergarten 
in Reading. 

8) In response to these review comments, provide additional information that describes the  
proposed number of lunch servings, how long lunch will be provided, and describe how it is  
coordinated into the overall schedule. Please note that the MSBA guidelines are based on two  
lunch servings.    

Killam plans to provide two lunch servings. Lunch will be a 45 minute period during which  
grades 3-5 will take recess followed by lunch, and grades K-2 will eat lunch followed by 
recess.  

9) The MSBA suggests the District consider providing assisted listening technology in each  
classroom, as well as general use throughout educational spaces within the proposed project for  
hearing impaired accessibility. Please acknowledge.    

The district acknowledges the MSBA’s suggestion and would like to note, the district is 
evaluating the current student population and assessing the need to provide assistive listening 
technology in each classroom and in educational spaces throughout the proposed project for 
hearing impaired accessibility.   

Additionally, in response to these review comments, please provide the following information:   

• Assuming that the District has achieved 1:1 distribution with students, please describe  the 

District’s plans for regular repairs, upgrades, and replacements of hardware and  
software. Also, confirm that these items have been incorporated into the schools' regular  
operating budget.  

The district has achieved 1:1 technology distribution with students across the district. Purchases 
for hardware and software are made centrally, or coordinated through the IT Department to 
leverage purchasing power and vendor relationships. Schools have discretion for school and 
classroom specific application purchases, and these are also reviewed by the IT Department to 
ensure compliance with student data privacy guidelines/legislation. The district maintains 
privacy agreements and annual contracts for services. 

Repairs: as part of our purchase agreements, the 3-year hardware damage protection is 
included for student and teacher computers. Post the three years, repairs are conducted onsite. 
Repairs to infrastructure are completed on an “as needed” basis internally if we have the 

Commented [Olivia Le6]: confirm two lunch servings - 
each block will be XX amount of time - list exact time in 
schedule 

Commented [Olivia Le7]: @jenni.katajamaki@lbpa.co
m @mike@mlpid.com For us to respond to this, our 
Food Service Director is wondering what the 
allotted time is for lunch per MSBA guidelines? Also 
how many students are we able to fit in the lunch room 
at a time? For example, are we allowed two 45 minute 
lunches? Or is it 20 minute lunches? 

Commented [jenni.kat8]: MSBA does not comment 
on allotted time. The new cafeteria will be the same 
size as the existing. 

Commented [jenni.kat9]: @olivia.lejeune@reading.k1
2.ma.us I put some draft language in based on how I 
have seen it done at other schools. Please review and 
edit. 



necessary parts/expertise; by the vendor if under warranty/in keeping with the service 
agreement; or through a contract with an outside vendor who specializes in that equipment. 

Upgrades and replacement: The district is working on a 5-year hardware replacement life-cycle 
for student and teacher computers. Infrastructure upgrades and replacement are made on an as 
needed basis.   

The technology budget provides for instructional technology purchases district wide, and at the 
school level, provisions are made for the purchase of instructional technology 
supplies/materials, subject specific technology (i.e. art, math), library/media technology, 
adaptive technology, computer and internet services, software licensing and support, phone 
repair and service. In addition, the budget provides for support personnel to include site-based 
technology integration specialists, and district-wide computer technicians. The remaining 
hardware purchases are typically made from year-end savings. • Provide additional information 
that describes any consideration of allowing students to  keep their assigned hardware/software 
beyond the daily use during the regular school  year.  

 

Middle and high school students are able to keep their assigned hardware/software beyond 
daily use during the regular school year. Further, any student that requires or requests it (i.e. 
Extended School Year, special summer programming can be assigned and use a device over the 
summer. This is done through school administration coordinating the effort with the IT 
Department.   

 

• Describe steps that the District has taken to ensure that all students have access to wi 

fi/internet in the home or after-hours settings, if any.  

 

The district provides for student access to wifi in the home or in after-hours settings on 
an “as needed” basis, and happens as staff become aware of a need.   

10) The information provided proposes an interdisciplinary media and STE curriculum. In  
response to these review comments, please describe the current and proposed staffing levels for  
the Media Center and indicate who will oversee, schedule and maintain the range of Media  
Center and STE spaces anticipated in the proposed project. Additionally, describe the skills and 

training that will be required of Media Center staff. Also, in response to these review comments  
please clarify if the proposed design will include a computer lab within the media center.   
 
Please see the Media Center/Library section on page 31 of our educational program for 
additional details. In summary, the media and adjacent STE space will be the home base of our 
Library Media Specialist, as the staff member uses both spaces as part of the library special. In 
our current model there is a library space with an adjacent STE classroom. During the library 
special, the Library Media Specialist flows between both spaces during an instructional block. 
We are looking to maintain this practice and improve upon it by providing an even stronger 
connection between the library/media and STE space. There is no intention to have a static 
computer lab within the media center. Rather, students will continue to use portable devices and 
have the most flexible educational opportunities possible.     
 

11) Please note art storage should include secure and appropriately ventilated space for toxic  
and hazardous materials as well as an accessible file of safety data sheets (“SDS”). Please  
acknowledge. Additionally, please consider providing a safety light at the entrance to the kiln  
room that automatically turns on with the kiln and/or kiln room lights are turned on.   

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1cSf6wQmhw-l6F8qQMUbLGpb0gHI-qRZNEtY9z5Ai_qQ/edit#bookmark=id.j4wwu6qkjrwk


The district acknowledges art storage should include secure and appropriately ventilated 
space for toxic  and hazardous materials as well as an accessible file of safety data sheets 
(“SDS”). The district will provide a safety light at the entrance to the kiln room that 
automatically turns on with the kiln. 

13) Describe how the District would support adaptable physical education for students with  
special needs. 

Usage: 

● Tailored Activities: Offer individualized physical activities for students with disabilities. 
● Skill Development: Focus on motor skills, coordination, strength, and fitness. 
● Inclusive Participation: Promote inclusion and social interaction. 
● Therapeutic Benefits: Aid in physical rehabilitation and functional improvement. 

Support: 

● Specialized Equipment: Use adaptive tools and devices. 
● Professional Development: Provide training for APE teachers and staff. 
● Collaboration: Foster teamwork among educators and specialists. 
● Maintenance: Regularly maintain and inspect equipment and facilities. 

Access to Curriculum: 

● Inclusive Design: Adapt the curriculum for diverse ability levels. 
● Individualized Plans: Implement IEPs with specific physical education goals. 
● Flexible Scheduling: Allow flexible scheduling for personalized attention. 
● Assessment and Feedback: Regularly assess progress and adjust activities. 

14) Please provide clarification regarding the intended use of the RISE program spaces, and if  
these spaces are used solely by the Pre-Kindergarten program.     

The RISE program spaces are specifically and solely for the Pre-Kindergarten program. 

18) Please confirm that the first responding emergency representatives will be consulted in the  
planning process and associated requirements will be incorporated into the Preferred  
Schematic.   

The design team has met with the Reading Fire Department, Reading Police Department, and 
EMS (who are within the Fire Department) to review site planning for emergency access. The 
design team will continue to consult and meet with emergency first responders about security 
and emergency access in future design phases. 

No further review comments for this section. 

3.1.3 INITIAL SPACE SUMMARY   

Provide the following Items Complet
e;  No 

response  
required 

Provided;   
District’s   
response   
required 

Not   
Provided;   
District’s   
response   
required 

Receipt 
of  

District
’s   

Respon
se;  To 

be filled  
out by   

MSBA Staff 



1 Space summary; one per approved 
design  enrollment 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

2 Floor plans of the existing facility ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

3 Narrative description of reasons for all variances 
(if  any) between proposed net and gross areas as  
compared to MSBA guidelines 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

 

 

MSBA Review Comments: 

1) The MSBA has performed an initial review of the space summary provided for the design  
enrollment of 455 students in grades K-5, with additional Pre-K students, and offers the following:   

• Core Academic – The overall proposed square footage for this category exceeds the MSBA  

guidelines by 10,350 net square feet (“nsf”). Based on the information provided, the following  
spaces have been proposed in order for the District to deliver its educational program: 

Core Academic Spaces Enrollment 1: 
Grades K-5 for 455 students 

Proposed   
No. Rooms 

MSBA   
Guidelines 
No.  Rooms 

Variance 

Kindergarten Classroom with Toilet 4 4 0 

General Classroom (Grades 1-5) 20 16 +4 

Science, Technology, Engineering (STE) Room 1 0 +1 

STE Storage Room 1 0 +1 

 

Shared Classroom Flex – Grade Level 6 0 +6 

Literacy Specialist 1 0 +1 

Multilingual Learner (MLL) Classroom 2 0 +2 

Math Tutor 1 0 +1 

Literacy Tutor 1 0 +1 

Reading Tutor 1 0 +1 

 

 

The District is proposing the following spaces:   

o Kindergarten Classrooms (with Toilet) – The District is proposing (4) 1,100 nsf  

totaling 4,400 nsf, which meets the MSBA guidelines. In response to these review  
comments, please review and respond to the following:   



▪ As the project further develops, please note and acknowledge that 1,100 

nsf is the minimum size for all newly constructed Kindergarten   

Classrooms. Please acknowledge.  Acknowledged. We will plan for Kindergarten 

rooms to be a minimum of 1,100 NSF. 

▪ Confirm that the proposed project will provide a minimum of two sinks in  

each Kindergarten Classroom. Please refer to the attached memo   

regarding MSBA’s Staff Recommendation for 2018 STE Area Guidelines.   

Confirmed. We will include a minimum of two sinks per classroom. 

o General Classrooms (Grades 1-5) – The District is proposing (20) 900 nsf  

totaling 18,000 nsf, which exceeds the MSBA guidelines by (4) General  
Classrooms and 2,800 nsf. Please note and acknowledge that MSBA guidelines  
are based on 23 students per classroom for grades 1-5.    Acknowledged. With 
23 students per classroom and 76 students per grade, the Killam School would 
require 3.3 classrooms per grade. In order to accommodate all students, allow 
for scheduling and grouping flexibility, and provide equal sections per grade 
level as students matriculate through the school, we believe that 4 classrooms 
per grade is necessary and appropriate. 

▪ As the project becomes further developed, please note and acknowledge  

that 900 nsf is the minimum size for all newly constructed General   

Classrooms in an elementary school. Noted and Acknowledged.     

▪ Confirm that the proposed project will provide a minimum of two sinks in  

each General Classroom for grades 1-5. Please refer to the attached   

memo regarding MSBA’s Staff Recommendation for 2018 STE Area   

Guidelines.  Noted and Confirmed. We will include a minimum of two sinks per 

classroom. 

 

o Science/Technology/Engineering (“STE”) Room – The District is proposing (1)  

1,080 nsf STE Room, which exceeds the MSBA guidelines. In response to these  
review comments, please provide the following information:     

▪ Describe the anticipated adjacencies, the scheduling and utilization of the  

proposed areas, how these areas will be supervised and staffed.       
 
Please see page 16 of our educational program for more information. In line 
with the comprehensive approach to health, hygiene, and active STEM 
learning activities endorsed by Reading Public Schools, we aim to implement 
the recommendations outlined in the MSBA’s "Review and Recommendations 
of Best Practices for K-12 STEM Learning Spaces".   
 
The STE space will be the homebase for the Library Media Specialist and 
Technology Integration Specialist, both who will support the connection 
between library/media resources and digital, tech-based equipment like bots, 
etc. Our vision is that the STE room and Media Center are adjacent to one 
another, allowing for both spaces to function independently but also be 
utilized as one larger space where students and experiences can spill freely 
from one place to another. 

The STE room will be scheduled as a special. Our library media specialist 



sees each general education classroom weekly for 40 minutes as a special 

block. Every six weeks classrooms will have an additional technology block 

and this position is consistently supporting classroom teachers with project 

based learning and cross curricular initiatives. 
 

▪ Provide examples of activities that will occur in these areas that cannot be  

delivered within an appropriately sized and fit-out General Classroom.       

To be provided by district 

▪ Describe why these activities are better suited in a separate area rather  

than in a larger General Classroom.       

Killam offers Library/Media as a special. Other STEM-based activities may 
happen in general classrooms as part of the general curriculum, but the 
Library/Technology special needs a dedicated teaching space. This space is 
crucial for the hands-on, dynamic nature of STEM activities, offering plenty 
of room for movement, experimentation, and small group work. The large 
materials needed for maker space activities require specific, organized 
storage outside of regular classrooms. Additionally, centralizing resources 
and advanced technologies in one location enhances management efficiency 
and reduces the costs associated with duplicating these shared resources. 

Please note the MSBA’s STE Guidelines require all elementary school general  
classrooms have a minimum of (2) sinks to facilitate STE exploration and project 
based learning within the classrooms. One sink must be accessible, and one must  
be deep and wide to accommodate buckets or containers. Please acknowledge.  

Acknowledged. 
 

o STE Storage – The District is proposing (1) 120 nsf STE Storage room, which  

exceeds the MSBA guidelines.   
 

Per the MSBA space template, STE rooms have a dedicated, adjacent STE 
storage space. Given our inclusion of an STE room, we have also included the 
associated storage space for the large amount of electronics, consumables, 
and often large-scale materials associated with STEM instruction. 

 
o Shared Classroom – Flex Grade Level – The District is proposing (6) 800 nsf  

Shared Classroom spaces totaling 4,800 nsf, which exceeds the MSBA 
guidelines. In response to these review comments, please provide the following 
information:     

▪ Describe the anticipated adjacencies, the scheduling and utilization of the  

proposed areas, how these areas will be supervised and staffed.     

Please see page 12 of our educational program where we document information 
about breakout spaces. We have included 6 breakout spaces, one for each of our 
grade level neighborhoods. Each breakout common area, which we call the 
“front yard” is shared among grade level classrooms to allow for meaningful 
connections, community building, academic collaboration, and differentiated 
instruction. We envision breakout spaces to be directly adjacent to classrooms, to 
allow for academic spill-out from the classrooms and to allow for good visibility 

Commented [Mike Piro10]: @Olivia.Lejeune@readin
g.k12.ma.us 
@Thomas.Milaschewski@reading.k12.ma.us Please 
review this whole section. This specific example of 
what will happen in the space needs to come from you. 
_Assigned to 
Thomas.Milaschewski@reading.k12.ma.us_ 

Commented [Olivia Le11]: @sarah.hardy@reading.k1
2.ma.us Could you provide a response for this? 



and supervision. This setup will support spontaneous educational activities, group 
instruction, team meetings, workshops, indoor sensory pathways, student 
presentations, performances, and creative projects. Break-out spaces are 
intended to be versatile and communal, available for use by both staff and 
students throughout the day. While not formally scheduled, teachers can 
coordinate usage based on their needs.    

▪ Provide examples of activities that will occur in these areas that cannot be  

delivered within an appropriately sized and fit-out General Classroom.    

The enlarged front yard spaces within each grade level neighborhood will allow 
for multiple classrooms or an entire grade level to meet at once. The space will 
also be used for independent student work spaces meeting the needs of diverse 
student learning styles. For example, two classes might use this space to gather 
for a presentation related to their studies. Also, the inclusion of the front yard 
space allows for parent volunteers as well as other educators within the school to 
gather groups of students across grades for collaborative work without disrupting 
instruction in any given classroom. In visioning we even talked about setting up 
academic demonstrations or activities in the breakout space and then allowing 
different classes to take turns experiencing it. These spaces can also serve for 
one-on-one support or small group instruction that does not require a separate 
acoustic environment. Students using these areas will either be supervised by a 
staff member or be within the direct line of sight of staff. 

As we finalize our preferred option and the design team refines their plans, we 
will ensure strong visual and spatial connections between academic areas and 
break-out spaces. It is crucial for each classroom to have significant frontage 
along the extended learning space, allowing teachers and students to easily flow 
in and out as needed.     

▪ Describe why these activities are better suited in a separate area rather  than in a 

larger General Classroom.       
 
A larger classroom may provide space to spread out and work in different 
zones, but there are times when multiple classes want to gather together for a 
more collaborative experience where classrooms and breakout space would be 
in use all at the same time. Imagine starting a mini-lesson with multiple classes 
in a centralized breakout area. Then, students spread out into different 
classrooms, where each teacher shares groups of students who are either using 
a certain material or are at a certain point in their project.  Breakout spaces 
can add that extra layer of differentiation and collaboration that we need more 
and more as educational practices and students’ needs change. 
 

o Literacy Specialist – The District is proposing (1) 200 nsf Literacy Specialist  

space, which exceeds the MSBA guidelines. In response to these review  
comments, provide information that further describes the scheduling and  
utilization of the proposed area and how this space will be supervised and staffed  
and provide examples of activities that will occur in this space that cannot be  
delivered within an appropriately sized and fit-out general classroom.   

Please see page 19 of our educational program where we document the usage of 
the Literacy Specialist space. Killam currently has one Literacy Specialist who 



provides Tier 2 support to students in grades K-5. The Literacy Specialist works 
with small groups of students in a pull-out setting to deliver explicit instruction to 
close foundational skills gaps in literacy. They need a space that is conducive to 
small group instruction and includes a table and chairs as well as a SmartBoard 
or related projected, interactive technology. The literacy specialist would also 
need a work desk for him/herself and a space to meet with classroom teachers to 
discuss progress, create action plans, and plan with tutors/interventionists. In the 
Reading Public Schools, literacy specialists also conduct benchmark assessments 
three times a year using DIBELS (per MA DESE guidelines) with all students in 
grades K-3. These assessments are conducted 1-1 using an iPad, therefore, the 
literacy specialist needs their space to be private (not shared) to accommodate 
this mandated screening.  
 

o Multilingual Learner Program (“MLP”) Classroom – The District is proposing  

(2) 400 nsf MLL Classroom spaces totaling 800 nsf, which exceeds the MSBA  
guidelines. In response to these review comments, provide additional information  
that describes the scheduling, and overall utilization of this space.   

Please see page 18 of our educational program where we document the usage of 
the MLP spaces. Killam currently has 21 MLLs. Two ESL (English as A Second 
Language) Teachers pull these students out of their classes to deliver our English 
development curriculum using visuals like posters and manipulatives, textbooks, 
notebooks, books, computers, SMART Boards, magnet boards, whiteboards, 
games, and active learning. Small groups of 2-4 students are determined by grade 
and English proficiency level and meet once or twice per day for 45 minutes. The 
number of MLL students has doubled in the last three years, so a larger space will 
allow for future growth, as well as room to spread out for physical activities. 

o Math Tutor – The District is proposing (1) 250 nsf Math Tutor space, which  

exceeds the MSBA guidelines. In response to these review comments, provide  
information that further describes the scheduling and utilization of the proposed  
area, how this space will be supervised and staffed, and provide examples of  
activities that will occur in this space that cannot be delivered within an the 
general classrooms.   
 
Please see page 20 where we document information regarding the math tutor. 
The math interventionist provides both pull-out support outside of classrooms 
and push-in support in classrooms. In the new building, math interventionists 
would have dedicated office spaces where they can support students in a quiet 
setting. However, to maximize inclusionary practices, they will also use the 
small group rooms and front porch breakout space adjacent to classrooms as a 
preferred method to support students on team whenever possible. 

o Literacy Tutor – The District is proposing (1) 250 nsf Literacy Tutor space,  

which exceeds the MSBA guidelines. In response to these review   
comments, provide information that further describes the scheduling and  
utilization of the proposed area, how this space will be supervised and staffed,  
and provide examples of activities that will occur in this space that cannot be  
delivered in the general classrooms.   

Please see page 19 of our educational program where we document the usage of 
the literacy tutor space. Literacy tutors provide both pull-out support outside of 
classrooms and push-in support in classrooms. In the new building, literacy 



tutors would have dedicated office spaces where they can support students in a 
quiet setting. However, to maximize inclusionary practices, literacy tutors will 
also use the small group rooms and front porch breakout space adjacent to 
classrooms as a preferred method to support students on team whenever possible. 

o Reading Tutor – The District is proposing (1) 250 nsf Reading Tutor space,  

which exceeds the MSBA guidelines. In response to these review   
comments, provide information that further describes the scheduling and  
utilization of the proposed area, how this space will be supervised and staffed,  
and provide examples of activities that will occur in this space that cannot be  
delivered in an appropriately sized and fit-out general classroom.   

Please see page 19 of our educational program where we document the usage of 
the Reading Tutor space. Reading tutors provide both pull-out support outside of 
classrooms and push-in support in classrooms. In the new building, reading 
tutors would have dedicated office spaces where they can support students in a 
quiet setting. However, to maximize inclusionary practices, reading tutors will 
also use the small group rooms and front porch breakout space adjacent to 
classrooms as a preferred method to support students on team whenever possible.  
 

• Special Education – The overall proposed square footage for this category exceeds the  

MSBA guidelines by 3,560 nsf.. In response to these review comments, please review and  
respond to the following items: 

 

o Adaptive PE/ Sensory Movement / Health Classroom - The District is proposing  

(1) 1,000 nsf Adaptive PE/ Sensory Movement / Health Classroom. In response to  

these review comments, please provide the following: 

▪ Describe the anticipated adjacencies, the scheduling and utilization of the  

proposed areas, and how these areas will be supervised and staffed.   

Please see page 43 of our educational program where we document the Adaptive 

PE space. We currently have a caseload of students that require adaptive PE, and 

therefore, this space would be used more than 50% of the day.  Though we cannot 

one hundred percent predict future caseloads and needs, our vision is that this 

specialized space supports the physical, emotional, and social development of 

students with disabilities, aligning with legal requirements and best practices in 

inclusive education. Currently, students receive adaptive PE instruction in spaces 

not conducive to learning, such as the hallway or classrooms. We envision this 

adaptive space to be adjacent to the gym to allow for social interaction with 

peers. Being close to the main gym allows for flexible scheduling and the 

possibility of integrated activities, where students in adaptive programs can 

participate in mainstream physical education sessions when appropriate, 

promoting inclusivity and peer relationships. 

In addition, this space will serve as a health classroom. Students in grades 4-5 

attend health class for 30 minutes on a six week rotating schedule. Currently the 

health module is taught with students sitting on the floor in the gym. The adaptive 

PE/Health Classroom would have an adjacent storage area for tables and chairs, 

allowing this space to serve double-duty as 



In addition, this space would be used to provide gross motor and sensory breaks 

to students on an as-needed basis. A student needing a gross motor/sensory break 

would be accompanied by a staff member. 

▪ Provide examples of activities that will occur in these areas.   

Health class (weekly to grades 4-5), Adaptive P.E., and gross motor and sensory 

movement breaks, as described in more detail above. 

 

Sensory Activities include: Interactive wall and floor sensory activities indoor obstacle 

course, trampoline, swings, mats, log roll yoga, stretch bans, weighted blankets and vests. 

▪ As part of the District’s PSR submittal, the District must fully describe the  

function, intended use, and scheduling of these spaces and clarify if this  space is 
to be used primarily for special education students.   

Though we cannot one hundred percent predict future caseloads and needs, we 

currently have a caseload of students that require adaptive PE. We envision that 

this space would be used for special education (adaptive PE) more than 50% of 

the time, with other uses (health classroom and gross motor/sensory breaks) 

occupying less than 50% of the time. 

▪ Please relocate the Adaptive PE/Sensory Movement/Health Classroom to  the 

‘Other’ category.  Noted. 

▪ An additional 200 nsf of Adaptive PE/ Sensory/ Health Classroom storage  space 

was proposed. In response to these review comments, please relocate the PT 
Storage space in the ‘Non-Programmed Spaces’ category.  As a reminder, the 
Designer must coordinate a space planning scenario  where the grossing factor 
does not exceed 1.50. Noted. 

The District is proposing the following spaces associated with the RISE program for Pre 
Kindergarten. In response to these review comments, please relocate the following  
spaces to the ‘Other’ category:   

o RISE – OT - The District is proposing (1) 300 nsf RISE – OT space, which  

exceeds the MSBA guidelines. Please note and acknowledge that square footage  

exceeding MSBA guidelines will be considered ineligible for reimbursement. 

Acknowledged. 

o RISE – PT – The District is proposing (1) 500 nsf RISE – PT space, which  

exceeds the MSBA guidelines. Please note and acknowledge that square footage  

exceeding MSBA guidelines will be considered ineligible for reimbursement. 

Acknowledged. 

o RISE – SLP – The District is proposing (3) 120 nsf RISE – SLP areas, totaling  

360 nsf which exceeds the MSBA guidelines. Please note and acknowledge that  

square footage exceeding MSBA guidelines will be considered ineligible for  

reimbursement. 

Acknowledged. 



● RISE Team Chair – The District is proposing (1) 120 nsf RISE  Team Chair 

space which exceeds the MSBA guidelines. Please note and  acknowledge that 

square footage exceeding MSBA guidelines will be considered  ineligible for 

reimbursement. 

 Acknowledged. 

o RISE Pre-K Testing – The District is proposing (1) 200 nsf RISE Pre-K Testing  

space, which exceeds the MSBA guidelines. Please note and acknowledge that  

square footage exceeding MSBA guidelines will be considered ineligible for  

reimbursement.  

 

Acknowledged. 

o RISE Pre-K Outside Provider Office – The District is proposing (1) 120 nsf RISE  

Pre-K Outside Provider Office space, which exceeds the MSBA guidelines. 

Please note and acknowledge that square footage exceeding MSBA guidelines will  

be considered ineligible for reimbursement. 

Acknowledged. 

o RISE Adaptive PE Storage – The District is proposing (1) 100 nsf RISE Adaptive  

PE Storage space which exceeds the MSBA guidelines. In response to these  

review comments, provide an updated space summary that relocates this space to  

the ‘Non- Programmed Spaces’ category. Additionally, please note and  

acknowledge that square footage exceeding MSBA guidelines will be considered  

ineligible for reimbursement. As a reminder, the Designer must coordinate a  

space planning scenario where the grossing factor does not exceed 1.50.  

Acknowledged. See attached updated space summary. 

Furthermore, please refer to section 3.1.2 comment 14 and provide further clarification  

of the use of the RISE program spaces proposed.   

Please note that the Special Education program is subject to approval by the Department  
of Elementary and Secondary Education (“DESE”). The District should provide the  
required information required with the Schematic Design submittal. Formal approval of  
the District’s proposed Special Education program by the DESE is a prerequisite for  
executing a Project Funding Agreement with the MSBA.   

• Art & Music – The overall proposed square footage for this category meets the MSBA  

guidelines. No further preliminary comments. 

• Health & Physical Education – The overall proposed square footage for this category  

exceeds the MSBA guidelines by 1,270 nsf. In response to these review comments please  
relocate the (1) 120 nsf Rec Department Storage area to the ‘Non-Programmed Spaces’  
category. Please note that square footage exceeding the MSBA guidelines in this  
category will be considered ineligible for reimbursement. Please acknowledge.   

Acknowledged. 

Additionally, please refer to the attached memo regarding the MSBA’s policy on physical  
education square footage in excess of the MSBA guidelines. Note the District may choose  
to build a gymnasium and related spaces in excess of MSBA guidelines, but in no event  



shall the gymnasium exceed 12,000 nsf. The MSBA will participate in a gymnasium of up  
to 6,000 nsf unless adjusted by the MSBA to increase teaching stations for enrollment  
and/or the educational plan. Additionally, areas in excess of the MSBA guidelines will be  
at the sole expense of the district; and the MSBA will exclude from its grant the cost of  
the total gross square feet (“gsf”) in excess of the guidelines for these areas.   

Noted. 

• Media Center – The overall proposed square footage for this category meets the MSBA  

guidelines. No further preliminary comments.   

• Dining & Food Service – The overall proposed square footage for this category exceeds  

the MSBA guidelines by 187 nsf. Please note that square footage exceeding the MSBA  
guidelines in this category will be considered ineligible for reimbursement. Please  
acknowledge. 

This increase is due to a larger staff lunch room. The MSBA guidelines provide for a 214 SF 
lunch room. The current staff lunch room at the Killam is 367 SF, which the staff feel is 
currently too small. Our program calls for a 400 SF lunchroom. We acknowledge that 
this will be ineligible for reimbursement. 

• Medical – The overall proposed square footage for this category meets the MSBA  

guidelines. No further preliminary comments. 

 
• Administration & Guidance – The overall proposed square footage for this category  

exceeds the MSBA guidelines by 538 nsf. In response to these review comments please  
relocate the following spaces to the ‘Non-Programmed Spaces’ category. 

o (1) 100 nsf Mother’s Room   

The District feels strongly that this is a necessary space to support the operation of the school. 

The Affordable Care Act requires that employers provide “A place, other than a bathroom, that 

is shielded from view and free from intrusion from co-workers and the public, which may be used 

by an employee to express breast milk.” This room is intended to provide a private space to 

express breastmilk, a space that is otherwise not available to many teachers and other staff 

members in the school. 

o (1) 150 nsf PTO Storage. 

Please note that square footage exceeding the MSBA guidelines in this category will be  
considered ineligible for reimbursement. Please acknowledge. 

Acknowledged. 

• Custodial & Maintenance – The overall proposed square footage for this category meets  

the MSBA guidelines. No further preliminary comments.   

• Other – The District is proposing 17,875 nsf for a full-time Pre-Kindergarten program  

for 180 additional students. The District is proposing the following spaces:   

o RISE Pre-Kindergarten Classrooms – The District is proposing (12) 1,150 nsf  

Pre-Kindergarten classrooms totaling 13,800 nsf for the full-time program, which  
exceeds the MSBA guidelines. In response to these review comments, please  
review and respond to the following items: 



▪ As the project becomes further developed, please note and acknowledge  

that 1,100 nsf is the minimum size for all newly constructed Pre 

Kindergarten Classrooms.   

Acknowledged. 

Provide further information that clarifies how the District calculated the number  
of classrooms needed for the Pre-Kindergarten. 

The District plans to relocate all currently existing Pre-K classrooms from 
across the district to the Killam, a total of 10. In addition, the District plans to 
add two classrooms to expand the Pre-K program. There are currently 64 
students on the waiting list for tuition-paying spaces in RISE. The addition of two 
classrooms would accommodate about 30 of those students. In addition, in line 
with recent trends, the Districts expects that the number of Pre-K students with 
IEPs to continue to increase. The additional classrooms will allow the district to 
accommodate these future needs. 

o RISE Multipurpose Program Space “Big Room” – The District is proposing (1)  

1,600 nsf Multipurpose Program space for the Pre-Kindergarten program, which  
exceeds the MSBA guidelines Please note and acknowledge that square footage  
exceeding MSBA guidelines will be considered ineligible for reimbursement.  
Additionally, as part of the District’s PSR submittal, the District must fully  
describe the function, intended use, and scheduling of these spaces.   

Acknowledged. 

o RISE Pre-K Director Office – The District is proposing (1) 150 nsf RISE Pre-K  

Director Office for the Pre-Kindergarten program, which exceeds MSBA  
guidelines.   

o RISE Reception / General Office – The District is proposing (1) 200 nsf  

Reception / General Office for the Pre-Kindergarten program, which exceeds  
MSBA guidelines.   

o RISE Pre-K Conference – The District is proposing (1) 350 nsf Pre-K  

Conference space for the Pre-Kindergarten program, which exceeds MSBA  
guidelines.   

o RISE Pre-K Team Chair Office – The District is proposing (1) 120 nsf Pre-K  

Team Chair for the Pre-Kindergarten program, which exceeds MSBA guidelines. 

 
o RISE Pre-K Mail/Copy/Storage – The District is proposing (1) 200 nsf Mail  

Copy / Storage room for the Pre-Kindergarten program, which exceeds MSBA  
guidelines. 

o RISE Pre-K Teacher Work Room – The District is proposing (1) 200 nsf Teacher  

Work Room for the Pre-Kindergarten program, which exceeds MSBA guidelines. 

o RISE Lunch Room – The District is proposing (1) 225 nsf Lunch Room for the  

Pre-Kindergarten program, which exceeds MSBA guidelines. In response to these  
review comments, please provide a narrative that clarifies why a separate lunch  
room is needed for Pre-Kindergarten students, outside of what has been provided  
for the kindergarten to grade 5 enrollment.  
 



To clarify, the RISE Lunch Room is not intended for student use. Rather, this is a 
lunch room for PK staff, as the staff lunch room for K-5 will likely be in use at the 
same time and will not accommodate enough space. During visioning and 
programming conversations, stakeholders expressed a desire to have a dedicated 
PK staff lunch space to preserve the collegial community created with PK. Though 
there may be times when all PK-5 staff gather in a much larger space like the 
cafeteria, maintaining a PK lunch space and a K-5 lunch space will better support 
teacher lunch schedules and provide the flexibility to hold smaller community 
building lunch functions for both PK and K-5 staff. 

o RISE Pre-K Student Service Clerk Office – The District is proposing (1) 120 nsf  

Student Service Clerk Office for the Pre-Kindergarten program, which exceeds  
MSBA guidelines. 

o RISE Nurse’s Office / Waiting Room – The District is proposing (1) 250 nsf  

Nurse’s Office / Waiting Room for the Pre-Kindergarten program, which exceeds  
MSBA guidelines. In response to these review comments, please provide a  
narrative that clarifies why a separate medical suite is needed for Pre 

Kindergarten students, beyond what has been provided for the kindergarten to  
grade 5 enrollment. 
With the addition of 180 additional Pre-K students to the Killam school, a 
second school nurse will be needed. The intent is to co-locate the two nurses in 
a single medical suite, however we will need more space to accommodate her 
desk as well as additional waiting space for students. 

o RISE Examination Room / Resting – The District is proposing (1) 100 nsf  

Examination Room / Waiting for the Pre-Kindergarten program, which exceeds  
MSBA guidelines. In response to these review comments, please provide a  
narrative that clarifies why a separate medical suite is needed for Pre 

Kindergarten students, beyond what has been provided for the kindergarten to  
grade 5 enrollment. This space has been removed from the proposed program. 
We believe that the two exam room/resting rooms provided per MSBA 
guidelines will be sufficient to support the needs of the school. 

o RISE Pre-K Medical Suite Toilet – The District is proposing (1) 60 nsf Pre-K  

Medical Suite Toilet for the Pre-Kindergarten program, which exceeds MSBA  
guidelines. In response to these review comments, please provide a narrative that  
clarifies why a separate medical suite is needed for Pre-Kindergarten students,  
beyond what has been provided for the kindergarten to grade 5 enrollment. 

Based on conversations with the school nurse and the District Director of Health 
Services, it was determined that a second medical suite toilet room is needed to 
support the larger school population. The toilet room would be in a centrally located 
medical suite, shared between K-5 and Pre-K. 

o Extended Day Office / Storage – The District is proposing (2) 250 nsf Extended  

Day Office / Storage space for the Pre-Kindergarten program, which exceeds  
MSBA guidelines. Please note the following square footage exceeding the MSBA  
guidelines will be considered ineligible for reimbursement. Please acknowledge. 

Acknowledged. 

o Extended Day Storage – Pre-K – The District is proposing (1) 100 nsf Extended  

Day Storage space for the Pre-Kindergarten program, which exceeds MSBA  



guidelines. In response to these review comments, please relocate the Extended  Day 
Program Storage space in the ‘Non-Programmed Spaces’ category.   

Noted. See attached revised program. 

Please note that upon selection of a preferred solution, the District may be required to adjust  
spaces/square footage that exceeds the MSBA guidelines and is not supported by the Educational  
Program provided. As a reminder, the Designer must coordinate a space planning scenario  
where the grossing factor does not exceed 1.50. Acknowledged. 

 
3) Not provided. In response to these review comments, please provide a narrative that describes  
the reasons for all variances between the proposed net and gross areas as compared to MSBA  
guidelines.   
 
See attached. In progress; to be provided by LBA. 

No further review comments for this section. 

3.1.4 EVALUATION OF EXISTING CONDITIONS 

Provide the following Items Complet
e;  No 

response  
required 

Provided;   
District’s   
response   
required 

Not   
Provided;   
District’s   
response   
required 

Receipt 
of  

District
’s   

Respon
se;  To 
be filled  
out by   

MSBA Staff 

1 Confirmation of legal title to the property. ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

2 Determination that the property is available 
for  development. 

☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

3 Existing historically significant features and any  
related effect on the project design and/or 
schedule. 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

4 Determination of any development restrictions 
that  may apply. 

☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

5 Initial Evaluation of building code compliance 
for  the existing facility. 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

6 Initial Evaluation of Architectural Access 
Board  rules and regulations and their 
application to a  potential project. 

☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

7 Preliminary evaluation of significant structural,  
environmental, geotechnical, or other physical  
conditions that may impact the cost and 
evaluations  of alternatives. 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 



8 Determination for need and schedule for 
soils  exploration and geotechnical 
evaluation. 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

9 Environmental site assessments minimally  
consisting of a Phase I: Initial Site 
Investigation  performed by a licensed site 
professional. 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

10 Assessment of the school for the presence 
of  hazardous materials. 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

11 Previous existing building and/or site reports,  
studies, drawings, etc. provided by the district, 
if  any. 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

 

 

MSBA Review Comments: 

In many sections of the Evaluation of Existing Conditions, the information provided refers to the  
Hadley Elementary School in Swampscott. Please coordinate and update the documents to  
reflect the correct school project. Noted; we will correct these errors. 

1) In response to these review comments, please provide a copy of the legal title for the existing  
J. Warren Killam Elementary School site. 

See attached. 

3) The information provided does not include any documentation of historical features or any  
intent to file a Project Notification Form (“PNF”) with the Massachusetts Historical  
Commission (“MHC”). In response to these review comments, please provide information of 
existing historical features if any. Please note, a PNF must be submitted to the MHC, and MHC  
approval is required prior to construction bids. The District should keep the MSBA informed of  
any decisions and/or proposed actions and should confirm that the proposed project is in  
conformance with Massachusetts General Law 950, CMR 71.00. In response to these review  
comments, please provide the timeline associated with filing a PNF with the MHC for review and  
approval.     
The project has no relevant historical features. The project team plans to file a PNF with the 
MHC during Design Development.   

5) The information provided in the energy code provisions for existing buildings states: 

“The Massachusetts Stretch Code as adopted by the Town of Reading adopts the 2021  
International Energy Conservation Code (IECC) with Massachusetts Amendments (225  
CMR 23).” 

In response to these review comments, please note and acknowledge that the project must meet  
the minimum 2023 version of the Green Policy Program requirements as described in MSBA  
Project Advisory 81. Noted and acknowledged. 

7) The information provided states the following: 

• Further investigation of the exterior covered at the main entrance is recommended to  

determine the extent of the rusting and whether the columns can be retained or should be  



replaced.   

• Further investigation of the cause of the severely deteriorated masonry joints at north  

façade is required.   

• “Hydrant flow test data was not available, so it is unknown at this time if the existing  

public water supply system is of adequate capacity to support a fire sprinkler system.” 

• “Due to the age of the existing utility plans, the location and routing of underground  

utility service should be confirmed and updated.” 

• “A condition assessment to verify locations and conditions of all sewer services and  

mains is recommended.” 

• “Further investigation of the existing stormwater management’s off-site routing is  

required.” 

As part of the District’s PSR submittal, please include the timeline and additional information  
associated with the work listed above. Please note and acknowledge that all cost increases  
subsequent to a Project Scope and Budget Approval from the MSBA’s Board of Directors will be  
the sole responsibility of the District. 

If the renovation/addition option is selected as the preferred option, these further investigations 
will be completed at the beginning of the SD phase. In new construction options, all of the 
referenced systems would be replaced in their entirety; in this case, no additional investigation 
of existing systems would be required. 

Additionally, the information provided in the 4.7 Existing Site Conditions states: 

“Currently the water, sanitary sewer and natural gas lines are available in the  
surrounding streets and drives, allowing for the potential of a new building to have  
access for connections.” 

In response to these review comments, please describe if the District is considering an all 
electric design for the preferred solution.   

At this time, the district is considering both all-electric and natural gas options. 

8) The information provided by LGCI in the Preliminary Geotechnical Report states the  
following: 

 
• “The existing fill was observed to be variable in composition and density. In addition, the  

existing fill contained traces of organic soil. Existing fill that was not placed with strict  
moisture, density, and gradation control presents risk of unpredictable settlement that  
may result in poor performance of floor slabs and foundations. Due to these risks, the  
existing fill and the underlying buried organic soil should be entirely removed from  
within the proposed building footprint and replaced with Structural Fill. We anticipate  
that the removal will extend up to depths of about 8 feet.”   

• Groundwater control is anticipated to be required during the removal of the existing fill  

and buried organic soil and during utility excavation.   

Please note that all cost increases subsequent to a Project Scope and Budget Approval from the  
MSBA’s Board of Directors will be the sole responsibility of the District. Please 
acknowledge. Noted and acknowledged.   



9) The information provided states:   

“The Site had one former 10,000-gallon UST installed in 1969 and removed in 2003  
according to the fire department records. The UST was transported to the James G.  
Grant Co., Inc. facility in Readville, MA for disposal.”   

Please note that costs associated with the removal of fuel storage tanks and associated  
contaminated soil are considered ineligible for reimbursement. Please acknowledge.   
Noted and acknowledged.   

10) The information provided from the report for hazardous materials determination survey for  
the existing school indicates that there are hazardous flooring materials as well as hazardous  
ceiling that contains asbestos. The project team should be aware of the current policies  
associated with MSBA’s participation in the abatement and removal of hazardous materials.  
However, please note and acknowledge that all costs associated with the removal of floor  
materials and ceiling tiles containing asbestos are considered ineligible for reimbursement.  
Noted and acknowledged.   

11) In response to these review comments, provide any previous existing building and/or site  
reports, studies, drawings, etc. provided by the District.  See attached existing conditions 
documents. Not provided as an attachment for KSBC review as these documents have 
previously been shared with KSBC. 

No further review comments for this section. 

3.1.5 SITE DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS 

Provide the following Items Complet
e;  No 

response  
required 

Provided;   
District’s   
response   
required 

Not   
Provided;   
District’s   
response   
required 

Receipt 
of  

District
’s   

Respon
se;  To 

be filled  
out by   

MSBA Staff 

1 A narrative describing project requirements 
related  to site development to be considered 
during the  preliminary and final evaluation of 
alternatives. 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

2 Existing site plan(s) ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

 

 

MSBA Review Comments: 

1) All of the proposed options are to be constructed on the existing J. Warren Killam Elementary  
School site. In response to these review comments, please review and respond to the following  
items:     

• Describe how the site constraints are potentially impacting the design options explored in  

the Preliminary Evaluation of Alternatives section.  The site area is limited, and it will be 
a tight fit during the construction phase while the existing school remains in operation on 
the site. The design team is studying design options that have a compact footprint in order 
to maximize site area available for construction, lay-down, geothermal wells, drop-off, 
and play space which will all need to co-exist on the site during construction. 



• As part of the District’s PSR submittal, provide site section(s) that illustrates how the  

Preferred Schematic sits on the site and how the proposed location impacts access and  
circulation. Please acknowledge.     Acknowledged. 

Additionally, the information provided states:   

• “The site is currently graded to create swales for rainwater management. A moderate  

amount of regrading would be required to create a flatter site suitable for 
development.” 

• The District is projecting to include a geothermal well field for ground source heating  and 

cooling using closed loop-bores for all addition/renovation and new construction  
options. Wells would be located below outdoor play and learning areas and the required  
well field size would be coordinated with building size and system loads.   

In response to these review comments, please confirm costs of regrading will be incorporated  
into the site costs of the Preferred Schematic Report. As part of the District’s PSR submittal,  
please provide additional information and costs associated with the work listed above.  
Regrading will be incorporated into the PSR cost estimate. 

2) As part of the Preferred Schematic Report, provide the following for the existing school 

site: • Circulation diagrams that identify the existing:      

o Bus and parent drop-off/pick-up locations;      

o Vehicular and pedestrian circulation; and      

o Emergency vehicle access.      

• Provide diagram(s) and a narrative that describes how a physically challenged  

individual currently accesses the existing building.        

• As part of the District’s PSR submittal, please provide circulation diagrams for all  

options explored as part of the Final Evaluation of Alternatives. Please acknowledge.   
Acknowledged. 

No further review comments for this section. 

3.1.6 PRELIMINARY EVALUATION OF ALTERNATIVES 

Provide the following Items Complet
e;  No 

response  
required 

Provided;   
District’s   
response   
required 

Not   
Provided;   
District’s   
response   
required 

Receipt 
of  

District
’s   

Respon
se;  To 
be filled  
out by   

MSBA Staff 

1 Analysis of school district student school  
assignment practices and available space in 
other  schools in the district 

☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

2 Tuition agreement with adjacent school districts ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 



3 Rental or acquisition of existing buildings 
that  could be made available for school use 

☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

 

4 Code Upgrade option that includes repair of  
systems and/or scope required for purposes of 
code  compliance; with no modification of 
existing spaces  or their function 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

5 Renovation(s) and/or addition(s) of varying 
degrees  to the existing building(s) 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

6 Construction of new building and the evaluation 
of  potential locations 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

7 List of 3 distinct alternatives (including at least 
1  renovation and/or addition option) are   
recommended for further development 
and  evaluation. 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

 

 

MSBA Review Comments: 

As part of the Preliminary Evaluation of Alternatives, the District explored the following (10)  
options. The District intends to further evaluate all options as part of its PSR submittal:    

• Code Upgrade: Code Upgrade/Base Repair for grades K-5, with partial Pre-K program,  

with an enrollment of 455 students at the existing J. Warren Killam Elementary School;  
with an estimated project cost of $52 million. 

• Option A-1: Addition/Renovation (3 story addition with full Pre-K) for grades K-5, with  

an enrollment of 455 students at the existing J. Warren Killam Elementary School, and  
with full Pre-K program of 180 students; with an estimated project cost of $144 million.  

• Option A-2: Addition/Renovation (2-story addition with partial Pre-K) for grades K-5,  

with an enrollment of 455 students at the existing J. Warren Killam Elementary School  
and with partial Pre-K program for 60 students; with an estimated project cost of $129 
million.  

• Option B-1: New Construction for grades K-5 (3-story, Compact Option, with full Pre K), 

with an enrollment of 455 students at the existing J. Warren Killam Elementary  School 
site, and with full Pre-K program for 180 students; with an estimated project cost  of 
$140 million.  

• Option B-2: New Construction for grades K-5 (2-story, Compact Option with partial  

Pre-K), with an enrollment of 455 students at the existing J. Warren Killam Elementary  
School site, and with partial Pre-K program for 60 students; with an estimated project  
cost of $122 million.  

• Option C-1: New Construction for grades K-5 (2 story with full Pre-K and parking on  

the north-west of the site), with an enrollment of 455 students at the existing J. Warren  
Killam Elementary School site, and with full Pre-K program for 180 students; with an  
estimated project cost of $138 million.  



• Option C-2: New Construction for grades K-5 (2 story, with partial Pre-K and parking  on 

the north-west of the site), with partial Pre-K program, with an enrollment of 455  
students at the existing J. Warren Killam Elementary School site, and with partial Pre-K  
program for 60 students; with an estimated project cost of $122 million.  

 
• Option D-1: New Construction for grades K-5 (2 story with full Pre-K and optimal solar  

orientation option), with an enrollment of 455 students at the existing J. Warren Killam  
Elementary School site, and with full Pre-K program for 180 students; with an estimated  
project cost of $141 million.  

• Option D-2: New Construction for grades K-5 (2 story with partial Pre-K and optimal  

solar orientation option), with an enrollment of 455 students at the existing J. Warren  
Killam Elementary School site and with partial Pre-K program for 60 students; with an  
estimated project cost of $125 million.  

• Option E-1: New Construction for grades K-5 (2-story with full Pre-K and playgrounds  

wrapped around academic wings), with an enrollment of 455 students at the existing J.  
Warren Killam Elementary School site, and with full Pre-K program for 180 students;  
with an estimated project cost of $139 million.  

2) Information regarding any tuition agreements with the District was not found. In response to  
these review comments, please provide a narrative that describes any current agreements. 

As the District is part of the SEEM Collaborative, this fall Wood End Elementary School will 
host the SEEM Collaborative Deaf and Hard of Hearing Program. Additionally, RPS is a 
School Choice District, where students are selected to enroll through a lottery process. As part 
of this program, the district receives funds from the sending district. The District also receives 
funding for students who attend RPS through the METCO program. 

4) The information provided states that the District found the Code Upgrade option for the  
existing J. Warren Killam Elementary School was not a viable option. Please note the District  
will be required to include a Code Upgrade option of the existing school as part of the PSR  
submittal for cost comparison purposes. Please acknowledge.  Acknowledged. 

5-7) As part of the PSR submittal the MSBA requires that the District continue to explore the  
following options:   

• A code upgrade option (“Option Code Upgrade”) at the existing J. Warren Killam  
Elementary School;   

• At least (1) addition/renovation option at the existing J. Warren Killam Elementary  
School; and,   

• At least (1) new construction option at the existing J. Warren Killam Elementary School  
site that does not include a Pre-kindergarten program.   

In response to these review comments, please indicate which options the District intends to  
further evaluate as part of its PSR submittal and provide detailed narratives that describe why  
other options, if any, were eliminated from further consideration. Please note, the final  
evaluation of alternatives included in the PSR submittal must include at least one code upgrade  
option, one renovation and/or addition option that maximizes the use of the existing facility, and  
at least one new construction option. Please acknowledge.     

Acknowledged. The district elected to further explore the code upgrade option, addition-
renovation option A1, new construction option B1, and new construction option E2 (which was 



added after the PDP was submitted). Options A2, B2, C2, and D2 were eliminated because the 
District elected to go with the full pre-K enrollment option. Options C1, D1, and E1 were 
eliminated because it was determined that a two-story building was not an effective approach 
given the tight site. 

Additionally, as part of the District’s PSR submittal please provide the following information:     

• Floor plan diagrams that include a key/legend for clarity that identify all the spaces with  
adjacencies to further understand the connections of the proposed spaces.   

• Ensure that further detail is provided in the subsequent phases of the project that clearly  
describes and illustrates the separation, safety provisions, and possible construction  
laydown areas that will be applied during construction on the occupied site. Please  
acknowledge. Acknowledged. 

• Please continue to use the same naming convention of options for clarity and consistency.  
Please acknowledge.  Acknowledged. 

Furthermore, please see comment above in Section 3.1.1, Item 3 regarding the District’s Design  
Enrollment.    Acknowledged. 

No further review comments for this section.   

3.1.7 LOCAL ACTIONS AND APPROVAL   

Provide the following Items Complet
e;  No 

response  
required 

Provided;   
District’s   
response   
required 

Not   
Provided;   
District’s   
response   
required 

Receipt 
of  

District
’s   

Respon
se;  To 

be filled  
out by   

MSBA Staff 

1 Signed Local Actions and Approvals 
Certification:  (original) 

☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

2 Certified copies of the School Building 
Committee  meeting notes showing specific 
submittal approval  vote language and voting 
results, and a list of  associated School Building 
Committee meeting  dates, agenda, attendees and 
description of the  presentation materials 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

 

 

MSBA Review Comments: 

2) Please provide a certified copy of the meeting minutes when available. Please acknowledge.    

Acknowledged. See attached. 

No further review comments for this section. 

3.1.8 APPENDICES 



Provide the following Items Complet
e; No 

response 
required 

Provid
ed;  

District’
s   

response   
required 

Not   
Provid

ed;  
District’

s   
response   
required 

Receipt 
of  

District
’s   

Respon
se;  To 

be filled  
out by   

MSBA Staff 

1 Current Statement of Interest ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

2 MSBA Board Action Letter including the invitation 
to  conduct a Feasibility Study 

☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

3 Design Enrollment Certification ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

 

 

MSBA Review Comments: 

3) Please see comment above in Section 3.1.1, Item 3.   

No further review comments for this section. 

Additional Comments: 

• MSBA would like to inform you of MSBA's recent Project Advisory #88, posted on July 1,  

2024, and linked here which describes changes to the MSBA submittal documents  relating to 
required state site approvals and site resiliency. We ask you to review this 

Project Advisory and forward any questions you may have about these requirements to  
your MSBA Project Coordinator. These documents will assist your client and the MSBA  
to understand your project's status relating to the various required state site approvals  
and any design considerations pertaining to resiliency for your selected project site. 

We ask that all members of your design team use the information indicated in Project  
Advisory #88 for your project, including the following updated MSBA documents: 

o Module 3 Feasibility Study Guidelines 

o Module 4 Schematic Design Guidelines 

o Module 6 (Design Development, 60%, and 90% Construction Documents) 

Incomplete submittals or submittals not reviewed by the OPM will not be accepted. This  
includes the information described in Project Advisory #88. Acknowledged. The 
tracking form will be submitted with the PSR submittal. 

• Please note that as part of the upcoming Preferred Schematic submittal process, districts  

and their consultants are required to provide a summary overview of the proposed  
project to the MSBA Facilities Assessment Subcommittee (the “FAS”). In preparation,  
the MSBA requests that the District submit a complete PowerPoint of the FAS   
presentation with the PSR submittal. For your reference, the guidance memorandum for  
preparing an FAS presentation is attached. We request additional time to prepare our 
slides for the FAS subcommittee in order to prepare views of the project which we do not 
anticipate to have completed by the PSR submittal date. If it is acceptable to the MSBA, 



we would propose to submit FAS slides on September 4 (7 days prior to the earlier FAS 
meeting). 

Regarding Past Projects: 

Both the MSBA’s enabling legislation, M.G.L. c. 70B, and the MSBA’s regulations, 963 CMR 2.00 et  
seq. specifically address the issue of past projects. MSBA records show a total MSBA payment of  
$500,228 for the J. Warren Killam Elementary School Green Repair Roof Project #201102460017G  
completed in January 2012. 

Pursuant to these requirements and depending on the School District’s ultimate plan for the School, the  
MSBA may recover a pro-rated portion of the financial assistance that the School District has received  
for previous renovation grants. The exact amount recovered will be established at the conclusion of the   
Schematic Design / Total Project Budget phase. Please see the MSBA website to view the MSBA’s  
regulations, statute and closed school bulletin for additional information. 

End 





 
Town of Reading 

Meeting Minutes 

 

Page | 1 

2016-09-22 LAG 

Board - Committee - Commission - Council: 
 

      Permanent Building Committee       Killam School Building Committee 
 

Date:  2024-05-09 Time:  5:30 PM      

 

Building:  Reading Town Hall      Location:  Berger Room 

 

Address:  16 Lowell Street Session:  Open Session 
 

Purpose:  General Business Version:  Final 
 

Attendees: Members - Present: 
 

Chair Carla Nazzaro, Vice Chair Karen Herrick (remote), John Coote, Kirk 

McCormick (remote), Greg Stepler (remote), Pat Tompkins (remote), Nancy 

Twomey (remote) 
 

Members - Not Present: 
 

Sarah McLaughlin, Ed Ross 
 

Others Present: 
 

Town Manager Matt Kraunelis, School Superintendent Thomas Milaschewski, 

School Finance Director Derek Pinto, Chief Financial Officer Sharon Angstrom 

(remote), Facilities Director Joe Huggins (remote), Assistant Facilities 

Director Kevin Cabuzzi (remote), LBA Project Manager Jenni Katajamaki, 

Colliers Project Manager Suzanna Yeung, Colliers Project Director Mike 

Carroll (remote), LBA Architect Leigh Sherwood (remote), Mollie O'Keeffe 

RMLD, Tom Ollila RMLD 
 

Minutes Respectfully Submitted By:  Jacquelyn LaVerde 
 

 

Topics of Discussion: 
 

 

This meeting was held in-person in the Berger Conference Room of Town Hall and remotely 

via Zoom. 

 

Call to Order 

Chair Carla Nazzaro called the meeting to order at 5:34 pm. 

Roll call attendance: Karen Gately Herrick, John Coote, Kirk McCormick, Greg Stepler, Pat 

Tompkins, Nancy Twomey, Carla Nazzaro. 

Not Present: Sarah McLaughlin, Ed Ross. 

 

Public Comment 

There was no comment from the public. 

 

KSBC Liaison Reports 

Chair Carla Nazzaro kicked off discussion of last week’s visits to Douglas and Gates 

Elementary Schools and Acton-Boxborough, and Cunniff and Hosmer Schools in Watertown.  

The tour at Gates was given by the Energy Director, and an Energy Manager and the 

Superintendent gave the tours in Watertown. 

 

John Coote shared that the two schools in Acton were cold and dreary. and upper floors 

looked out over a vast roof.  He stated that he felt the Watertown schools were bright, 

happy, and colorful. 

 



 

Page | 2 

Karen Gately Herrick stated that she was happy to hear from energy managers in both 

districts that the net-zero systems in place were performing at or better than the 

parameters they were designed for, and not having operational issues. 

 

Facilities Director Joe Huggins noted that he and Assistant Facilities Director Kevin Cabuzzi 

had a discussion with the Sustainability Manager and the HVAC Manager in Acton, and they 

learned that the systems were meeting the targets they were designed for, but also learned 

of reliability problems and growing pains that they were dealing with.  He shared his 

concerns about how well the buildings regulate the heat, and noted that electricity costs 

would increase.  He cautioned about the cost to build a net zero building, and the impact 

those costs may have on educational programming.  He noted that both Acton and 

Watertown are still under warranty, and he would like to look at a building that has been 

performing for five to ten years to see what the operational costs are really like. 

 

LBA Project Manager Jenni Katajamaki thanked the Committee for their feedback and stated 

that she and her team would try to find another school, or institutional building, with similar 

geothermal systems, with a five-to-ten-year track record, and do more due diligence on 

geothermal and all-electric systems. 

 

Greg Stepler noted that there are a number of competing interests that the engineers will 

have to address.  He noted that in his experience, some clients have been more concerned 

with first cost, but had little consideration for long-term operating costs.  Seeing proof that 

sustainable technology has a lower operating cost will be critical to the decision making.  He 

stated that he is a believer in the technology and the direction the industry is going, but the 

Committee needs to do its due diligence. 

 

Designer Report/Review and Discuss Feedback on Draft PDP Report 

LBA Project Manager Jenni Katajamaki reviewed the tasks completed since the last meeting 

including: SBC site visits; completion of draft PDP report; draft of the educational program, 

which was included in the draft PDP report; completion of geotechnical investigation field 

work, with the final geotechnical report expected tomorrow; and PDP cost estimate, which 

was included in the PDP report.  The PDP report will be approved this evening and submitted 

to the MSBA on May 20th.  MSBA will then review the document, and there will be a district 

response period.  In the meantime, the PSR phase will be underway, and submitted at the 

end of August.  At the end of the PSR, the district will have a preferred option. 

 

Ms. Katajamaki provided a summary of the preliminary findings of the geotechnical 

investigation.  One finding that was not great, but not unexpected, was organic soils found 

between the depths of two feet and eight feet, which means that soil is not suitable for 

structural fill, and cannot be underneath the building footprint.  That soil will need to be 

removed and replaced with structural fill.  The cost of that soil replacement has been 

incorporated into this first cost estimate. Groundwater was found six feet below grade. The 

preliminary foundation recommendation is a shallow foundation. 

 

Ms. Katajamaki also reviewed the summary of the PDP report, which included: the project 

directory and schedule; educational program; initial space summary; evaluation of existing 

conditions; site development narrative; site plan options; preliminary evaluation of 

alternatives; metrics to evaluate the alternatives; the letter from the district approving the 

submission; meeting agendas, minutes, and list of meeting dates; appendices including the 

educational visioning report, meeting minutes from programming, various other reports, 

and the cost estimate. 

 

The Committee had the opportunity to review the draft of the PDP and submit comments 

prior to the meeting.  Ms. Katajamaki reviewed and discussed many of the comments with 

the Committee including: adding the selection of materials that are recyclable at their end 

of life to sustainability goals, researching whether a geothermal system is viable during the 

PSR phase, potentially needing swing space for students during construction, and 

educational programming. 

 



 

Page | 3 

Ms. Katajamaki reviewed the nine options for evaluations of alternatives, which included full 

and partial pre-K versions of an addition/renovation, a compact/three-story building, a two-

story building that will require no demolition of the existing building, a two-story building 

that will involve some demolition of the existing building, and a two-story option that will 

require extensive demolition of the existing building.  The preliminary criteria were 

developed based on the project charter and would reveal a difference between the options 

and include: being built around the student putting education first in the design, success of 

classroom neighborhoods, success of educational spaces, community centered, cost-value 

balance, appropriateness of the building for the neighborhood context, quality of outdoor 

space, responsible sustainability, energy efficiency, ease of maintenance and life cycle cost, 

safety and health, traffic and access, safe and secure building, phasing and disruption, a 

sense of belonging, warm and welcoming, and scale and character. 

 

Next steps include the submission of the PDP to the MSBA on May 20th, a presentation to 

the Select Board on May 21st, and Sustainability subcommittee meetings May 21st and July 

9th.  The next SBC meetings will continue the discussion on evaluation of alternatives, PSR 

cost estimate, joint meeting with Town committees, revised cost estimates for the PSR, and 

the preferred solution.  Upcoming community meetings are scheduled for July 15th and 

August 8th. 

 

Vote to Approve PDP Submittal 

On a motion by Carla Nazzaro, seconded by Karen Gately Herrick, the Killam 

School Building Committee voted 7-0-0 to approve the PDP submission. 

Roll call vote: Karen Gately Herrick – Yes, John Coote – Yes, Kirk McCormick – Yes, 

Greg Stepler – Yes, Pat Tompkins – Yes, Nancy Twomey – Yes, Carla Nazzaro – 

Yes. 

 

OPM Report  

Financials 

Colliers Project Manager Suzanna Yeung noted that there were no budget adjustments.  

There were two invoices for March: one for $20,000 for Colliers, and one for $121,000 for 

LBA.  Colliers Project Director Mike Carroll noted that the project is still on schedule and 

under budget. 

 

Warrant/ Invoices  

On a motion by Carla Nazzaro, seconded by Karen Gately Herrick, the Killam 

School Building Committee voted 7-0-0 to approve the project invoicing from April 

8, 2024, through April 10, 2024. 

Roll call vote: Karen Gately Herrick – Yes, John Coote – Yes, Kirk McCormick – Yes, 

Greg Stepler – Yes, Pat Tompkins – Yes, Nancy Twomey – Yes, Carla Nazzaro – 

Yes. 

 

Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes  

On a motion by Carla Nazzaro, seconded by Karen Gately Herrick, the Killam 

School Building Committee voted 7-0-0 to approve the meeting minutes of April 8, 

2024. 

Roll call vote: Karen Gately Herrick – Yes, John Coote – Yes, Kirk McCormick – Yes, 

Greg Stepler – Yes, Pat Tompkins – Yes, Nancy Twomey – Yes, Carla Nazzaro – 

Yes. 

 

Future Agenda Items and Next Meeting Dates 

The next Killam School Building Committee meeting is scheduled for June 17th, 2024.  The 

agenda will be to continue the discussion on the evaluation of alternatives.  The next 

community meeting is scheduled for July 15th, which will also discuss the evaluation of 

alternatives. 

 

On a motion by Karen Gately Herrick, seconded by Pat Tompkins, the Killam School 

Building Committee voted 7-0-0 to adjourn at 6:57 pm. 



 

Page | 4 

Roll call vote: Karen Gately Herrick – Yes, John Coote – Yes, Kirk McCormick – Yes, 

Greg Stepler – Yes. Pat Tompkins – Yes, Nancy Twomey – Yes, Carla Nazzaro – 

Yes. 

















Office of the Superintendent of 

Schools 

82 Oakland Road 

Reading, MA  01867 

781 944-5800 

 

Office of the Town Manager 

16 Lowell Street 

Reading, MA  01867 

781-942-9043 

  

KILLAM SCHOOL BUILDING 

COMMITTEE 
 

Carla Nazzaro Chair 

 

Shawn Brandt 

John Coote 

Chris Haley 

Kirk McCormick 

Ed Ross 

Greg Stepler 

Pat Tompkins 

Nancy Twomey 

 

Thomas Milaschewski, Ed.D. 

Superintendent of Schools 

 

Matt Kraunelis 

Town Manager 
TO: Killam School Building Committee 

FROM: Carla Nazzaro, Chair 

DATE: July 18, 2024 

TOPIC: Recent Select Board appointment to the KSBC, committee member formation and role of the Chair and building 

committee 

 

At the request of Nancy, Ed and Pat at the July 8, 2024 meeting, there will be a review and discussion of the 

recent appointment to KSBC along with committee member formation and role of the chair and the 
KSBC. 

I have attached four documents to this memo to inform this discussion: 

▪ Formation of KSBC – School Committee Chair letter  
▪ MSBA Building Committee Membership letter 
▪ Letter from Town/School Committee council regarding KSBC membership of Select 

Board Appointment. Released by the SB at the 7-16 meeting 
▪ Massachusetts Association of School Committees (MASC) document – Role of the 

Chair 
 



Administrative Offices 

82 Oakland Road 

Reading, MA  01867 

781 944-5800 

 

  

READING SCHOOL COMMITTEE 
 

Thomas Wise Chair 

Shawn Brandt Vice-Chair  

 

Erin Gaffen 

Sarah McLaughlin 

Carla Nazzaro 

Charles Robinson 

 

Thomas Milaschewski, Ed.D. 

Superintendent of Schools 

 
TO:  Reading School Committee 

FROM:  Thomas Wise, Reading School Committee Chair 

DATE:  June 7, 2022 

TOPIC:  Killam:  School Building Committee Appointment Committee Background and Discussion 

At our meeting on the 9th of June, we will discuss the process of appointing the Killam School Building Committee for the 

Killam project.  We have a few regulations, bylaws, and time driven deliverables to work between as we determine the 

who, when and how the committee will be formed.  The purpose of this memo is to provide the preliminary background 

so that we can engage in a fruitful discussion and end up on some recommendations.  At the current time, the 

appointment committee of the Killam School Building Committee is scheduled to meet on Monday, the 13th at 5:30 p.m. 

and I wanted to discuss this with the entire School Committee prior to that meeting. 

MGL Chapter 71, Section 68 

The first factor to consider, and the highest in legal authority, is Mass General Law.  MGL Chapter 71, Section 68 outlines 

the requirements for School Committees to maintain school buildings and provide transportation to those school 

buildings at various distances and age groups.  Additionally, it includes this final clause: 

Whenever a town shall undertake to provide a schoolhouse, the town shall appoint at least one 

member of the school committee, or its designee, to serve on the agency, board or committee to 

which the planning and construction or other acquisition of such schoolhouse is delegated. 

Thus, at a minimum, we will need to appoint one member of the School Committee to the Killam School Building 

Committee.  We may choose to advocate for another member or two, but we will explore that throughout this memo. 

963 CMR 2.00 

The next authority to consider is 963 CMR 2.00 – Massachusetts School Building Authority – School Building Grant 

Program.  Since we have applied and been accepted into the MSBA Grant Program, we are bound by their regulations.  

Within the regulation, Section 2.10.3 outlines the Killam School Building Committee composition requirements, approval 

process and change notification process. The sub sections of that regulation are as follows (bolding by me and not in the 

regulation itself): 

(a) The Eligible Applicant shall formulate a school building committee for the purpose of generally 

monitoring the Application process and to advise the Eligible Applicant during the construction of an 

Approved Project. 

(b) [T]he school building committee shall be formed in accordance with the provisions of the Eligible 

Applicant’s local charter and/or by-laws and it is recommended that the city, town, regional school 

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXII/Chapter71/Section68
https://www.mass.gov/doc/963-cmr-2-school-building-grant-program/download


district, or independent agricultural and technical school make a reasonable effort to include one or 

more of the following individuals: the local chief executive officer of the Eligible Applicant, or, in the 

case of a town whose local chief executive officer is a multi-party body, said body may elect one of its 

members to serve on the school building committee; the town administrator, town manager, or city 

manager, where applicable; at least one member of the school committee, as required by M.G.L. c. 71, § 

68; the superintendent of schools; the local official responsible for building maintenance; a 

representative of the office or body authorized by law to construct school buildings in that city, town or 

regional school district, or for that independent agricultural and technical school; the school principal 

from the subject school; a member who has knowledge of the educational mission and function of the 

facility; a local budget official or member of the local finance committee; members of the community 

with architecture, engineering and/or construction experience to provide advice relative to the effect of 

the Proposed Project on the community and to examine building design and construction in terms of its 

constructability 

€ The Authority may hold “best practices” information sessions at varying geographic locations in the 

Commonwealth for the purposes of keeping school building committees up to date on regulatory and 

policy activities of the Authority. 

(d) The Eligible Applicant shall submit to the Authority for its approval, a written statement describing 

the composition of the school building committee and the role of the school building committee in 

monitoring the Application process and advising the Eligible Applicant during the construction of the 

Approved Project. The written statement shall be in a format prescribed by the Authority. 

€ The Authority shall approve the composition and role of the school building committee which 

approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. The Authority’s approval will be based on several factors, 

including, but not limited to: 

1. past performance of the school building committee, the building committee, whether 

temporary or permanent, or any other committee responsible for the oversight, management, or 

administration of the construction of public buildings, the composition of the school building 

committee and qualifications of its individual members, the powers and duties of the school 

building committee; and the school building committee’s procedures for conducting its meetings; 

and 

2. the extent to which there is representation of the municipal government, school district 

personnel with management, educational and maintenance expertise, and representation of 

members of the local community with design and construction experience. 

After the approval of the school building committee by the Authority, if any, the Eligible Applicant 

shall notify the Authority in writing within 20 calendar days of any changes to the membership or the 

duties of said committee. The Eligible Applicant shall make a reasonable effort to ensure the 

continuity of membership of the school building committee throughout the life of an Approved 

Project. 

One key thing the regulation does not cover is voting rights.  However, the documentation provided by the MSBA allows 

for the Committee to be formed with both voting and non-voting members.  This will be critical as we work to comply 

with the Reading ByLaws as well. 

Reading General ByLaw 

Within the Reading General ByLaw, the Permanent Building Committee is outlined and defined in Section 3.3.6.  In 

addition to defining the members of the Permanent Building Committee, this section of the General ByLaw also outlines 

the process of establishing building committees.  The key sections are as follows: 

https://www.readingma.gov/DocumentCenter/View/2241/General-Bylaw-PDF


… Permanent and Temporary Members of the Permanent Building Committee shall be appointed by an 

Appointment Committee consisting of the Chair of the Select Board, the Chair of the School Committee 

and the Town Moderator. … 

The Permanent Building Committee shall adopt a formal building project application process to be 

followed in order for any proposed project to be considered for evaluation and possible administration. 

The Permanent Building Committee shall evaluate only Project Applications forwarded by the School 

Committee, the Select Board or the Library Trustees (the “Sponsoring Agency”). All Sponsoring Agencies 

shall be notified of this application process and any revisions to it in a timely manner after their 

adoption. 

The Permanent Building Committee shall review and administer major Town building design studies 

and construction projects having expected aggregate costs of $1,500,000 or more, but may decline 

administration of Projects with little or no actual construction. The Permanent Building Committee’s 

jurisdiction shall not extend to projects of the Reading Municipal Light Department. The Permanent 

Building Committee shall present their project evaluations to Town Meeting at the request of the 

Sponsoring Agency for consideration and approval. 

Once Town Meeting has authorized funds for a Project, the Appointment Committee shall add 

Temporary Members to the Permanent Building Committee for such Project. Temporary Members shall 

have the same participation and voting rights as Permanent Members on matters affecting the 

particular Project for which they were appointed. Temporary Members shall be registered voters of the 

Town, nominated by the Sponsoring Agency, and shall serve only for the time during which the 

Permanent Building Committee is exercising its functions with respect to such Project. In the event that a 

particular project is subject to participant requirements of a state funding authority, the Appointment 

Committee may appoint additional Temporary members to the Permanent Building Committee for 

that project; provided, however, that, in no event, shall the aggregate number of Permanent and 

Temporary Members for a particular project exceed nine (9). Quorum requirements for the Permanent 

Building Committee shall be the majority of the Permanent and Temporary Members for a particular 

project. 

In the case of Killam, the School Committee is the Sponsoring Agency.  We, through work with Joe Huggins, Kevin 

Cabuzzi, Town Manager Fidel Maltez, Superintendent Thomas Milaschewski, and I have submitted our application to the 

Permanent Building Committee.  Our next obligation is to submit nominations for Temporary Members to the 

Appointment Committee for the formation of the Killam School Building Committee.   

If we look through the requirements of the MSBA in concert with the requirements of the Town of Reading ByLaws, I 

suggest we can only nominate four voting members.  However, since many of the people that will fill the roles the MSBA 

has required, do not live in Reading, that should not be a problem.  We can then nominate additional non-voting 

members as consultants, like how we built the RMHS Track Naming Committee with Kevin Tracey as a consultant. 

Timing of Killam School Building Committee Creation 

The Town of Reading Bylaw says the Appointment Committee shall add Temporary Members to the Permanent Building 

Committee once Town Meeting has authorized funds for a Project.  However, in their timeline for this phase of the 

Project, the MSBA requires documentation about the membership of the Killam School Building Committee by July 31, 

2022. 

In working through this with Town Counsel and current Permanent Building Member Gregory Stepler, Town Manager 

Fidel Maltez provided the following background: 

I spoke about it to Town Counsel today and we agreed that it was grey area. In all reality, the school 

building committee has nothing to do until Town Meeting votes the $2.2 Million funds for the 



feasibility/schematic design. At that point, Town Meeting will have clearly voted for the project. It is a 

little awkward, because the deadline of creating the school building committee is before November Town 

Meeting. I could ask the MSBA if we could formally appoint the School Building Committee after the 

November vote, but that wasn’t the recommendation from Town Counsel. We agreed today that it was a 

technicality and not really a violation. If Town Meeting doesn’t approve the $2.2 Million, the School 

building committee would dissolve. 

I spoke to Greg Stepler, who is in Town Meeting and the Permanent Building Committee. He was involved 

in making the bylaw. He said the intent of that language was to prevent “unrealistic” projects from 

coming to the Permanent Building Committee. In other words, if someone wanted to build something but 

didn’t have approved funds or Town Meeting support, the Permanent Building could use this language to 

not take on the project. We all agree that the Killam School is not like this. 

Additionally, in further discussions, it was agreed that the Gienapp demographic study and analysis, which was 

authorized by Town Meeting, satisfies the intent of the ByLaw.  While that authorization wasn’t for more than 

$1,500,000, we know the full cost will be so and the MSBA approval of our participation in the process further 

validates this as a real project rather than speculative or unrealistic. 

Therefore, the recommendation is to form the Killam School Building Committee now, at least prior to the July 

31st, 2022, deadline and empower them after Town Meeting has appropriated the funds for the Feasibility 

Study, presuming they do.  As outlined above, if Town Meeting does not appropriate the funds, the Killam 

School Building Committee simply dissolves. 

Role of Killam School Building Committee vs. School Committee 

The role of the Killam School Building Committee will be in alignment with that of the Permanent Building Committee.  

Specifically, it will be to “review and administer major Town building design studies and construction projects having 

expected aggregate costs of $1,500,000 or more.”  They are not the marketing or advocacy arm of this project.  That role 

will still sit with the School Committee as we move forward with Town Meeting and, hopefully, the eventual town wide 

vote.   

Further, since this is the first time this portion of the General ByLaw is being executed, it will be important that we stay 

tightly aligned with the Killam School Building Committee, so we make sure nothing falls through the cracks.  It will also 

be important that our feedback, the feedback of the administration, and that of the greater community is incorporated 

into the design appropriately. 

Summary Recommendation for Discussion 

Given all of the above, the following are the roles, people, and recommendations of voting or non-voting that I would 

like us to discuss and ultimately nominate to the Appointment Committee of the Permanent Building Committee: 

Role Person Voting/Non-Voting Resident 

Chief Executive Officer / Select Board 

Member 

Member Elected by Select Board Voting Yes 

Town Manager Fidel Maltez Non-Voting No 

School Committee Member (min of 1) To be Discussed Voting Yes 

Superintendent Thomas Milaschewski Non-Voting No 

Local Official Responsible for Building 

Maintenance 

Joe Huggins Non-Voting No 



Representative of the Office or Body 

authorized by law to construct School 

Buildings 

TBD TBD TBD 

School Principal Sarah Leveque Non-Voting No 

A member with knowledge of the 

Educational Mission and Function of 

Killam 

A member of Killam Staff TBD TBD 

Local Budget Official or Finance 

Committee Member 

Endri Kume, Town Treasurer Voting Yes 

Members of the Community with 

Architecture, Engineering or 

Construction Experience 

The Permanent Building Committee Voting Yes 

As we review the above, we really have open spot for a voting member that may be filled by people in the categories 

marked with a TBD in the Voting/Non-Voting and Resident columns. That is because we will have one Select Board 

member, at least one School Committee member, and the Town Treasurer all as Voting Residents of the Town. The 

suggestion of the appointment of Endri Kume to the Local Budget Official role was provided by the Town Manager, Fidel 

Maltez, as Endri oversees all borrowing and monitoring of debt and cash for the Town and reports to Sharon Angstrom 

while also being a Town Resident. 

I have asked for Legal Counsel to provide feedback on the “Representative of the Office or Body authorize by law to 

construct School Buildings” membership on the Committee.  Initial feedback is that the Body in question is the School 

Committee.  So, this could be the second School Committee seat, or if the Killam staff member is a resident, that would 

provide the fourth member of the Killam School Building Committee.  

Additionally, we do not have to fill every role as they are recommended roles only.  There is nothing that prevents us 

from having more than one person per category, but we also do not want the committee to get too large.  Alternatively, 

we can choose to have one member fill more than one spot. Finally, as outlined in the General Bylaw, quorum would be 

defined only by the voting members of the Committee; the Permanent Building Committee members plus the four 

Temporary Members nominated by the School Committee and appointed by the Appointing Committee. 

Please be prepared to discuss this, including asking any questions you may have, during our meeting on Thursday. 









 

 

 
MEMORANDUM  
 
Subj.: Killam School Building Committee Composition 
To:  Reading Select Board 
From:  Ivria Fried and Donna Brewer, Office of the Town Counsel  
Date:  July 5, 2024 
 

 
This memorandum describes the process to appoint and amend the membership of the 

Killam School Building Committee (“KSBC”). The process is governed by state law and 
regulation and, to the extent not superseded, by the Town Charter and Bylaws. We reviewed the 
meeting minutes of the Appointment Committee dated June 13, 2022, and the Select Board dated 
June 28, 2022, copies of which are attached. For background information on prior actions of the 
School Committee, we also discussed the matter with the current Chair of the School Committee 
and the Chair of the Killam School Building Committee.  

 
I. GOVERNING LAW 

 
A. State Law 

 
The General Laws provide minimal guidance or restrictions on the formation of a school 

building committee. G.L. c. 71, § 68 merely requires that a member of the School Committee be 
a member of any school building committee.1  
 

Similarly, state regulations require the formation of a school building committee but 
provide only a recommended framework for membership. Per 963 CMR 2.06 (2)(b), the 
committee must comply with any applicable bylaws, but it recommends that membership include 
a Select Board member elected by that board to serve, the Town Manager, at least one member 
of the School Committee, the Superintendent, a local official in charge of building maintenance, 
a representative of the body or office authorized to construct school buildings, the school 
principal, someone with knowledge of the educational mission and function of the proposed 
school, a member of the local finance committee or local budget official, and a citizen with 
architecture, engineering, or construction experience.2 The Massachusetts School Building 

 
1 Section 68 states: “Whenever a town shall undertake to provide a schoolhouse, the town shall appoint at least one 
member of the school committee, or its designee, to serve on the agency, board or committee to which the planning 
and construction or other acquisition of such schoolhouse is delegated.” 
2 The regulations provide:  

The school building committee shall be formed in accordance with the provisions of the Eligible 
Applicant's local charter and/or by-laws and it is recommended that the city, town, regional school district, 
or independent agricultural and technical school make a reasonable effort to include one or more of the 
following individuals:  the local chief executive officer of the Eligible Applicant, or, in the case of a town 
whose local chief executive officer is a multi-party body, said body may elect one of its members to serve 
on the school building committee; the town administrator, town manager, or city manager, where 
applicable; at least one member of the school committee, as required by M.G.L. c. 71, § 68; the 
superintendent of schools; the local official responsible for building maintenance; a representative of the 
office or body authorized by law to construct school buildings in that city, town or regional school district, 



   
 

 

Authority (“MSBA”) must approve the composition of the school building committee. Any 
changes to the membership must be reported to the MSBA within 20 business days.3 The MSBA 
prefers that a “reasonable effort” be made to ensure continuity of membership throughout the life 
of the project.  
 

B. Town Charter and General Bylaws 
 

The Charter is silent on the creation of a school building committee. However, Charter 
Section 8.10 requires the “appointing authority” of any board or committee to post, for a 
minimum of 15 days, public notice of a vacancy. Charter Section 8.12 describes the process for 
the “appointing authority” to remove an appointed member of a board or committee.4 The 
process, in short, precludes the appointing authority from removing a member without prior 
notice and a public hearing.5  
 

Pursuant to Section 3.3.6 of the General Bylaws, the Permanent Building Committee 
(“PBC”) reviews and administers all major building projects, including school building projects. 
The PBC is composed of five Permanent Members and, for any approved project, up to two 
Temporary Members.6 Both Permanent and Temporary Members have voting rights and are 
appointed by an Appointing Committee, composed of the Chair of the Select Board, the Chair of 
the School Committee, and the Town Moderator. Further, “[i]n the event that a particular project 
is subject to participant requirements of a state funding authority, the Appointment Committee 
may appoint additional Temporary members to the Permanent Building Committee for that 
project; provided, however, that, in no event, shall the aggregate number of Permanent and 
Temporary Members for a particular project exceed nine (9).” 
 

The PBC only considers projects submitted for consideration by the School Committee, 
the Select Board, or the Library Trustees. These three applicants are defined in General Bylaw 
Section 3.3.6 as the Sponsoring Agency. Temporary Members for approved projects must be 

 
or for that independent agricultural and technical school; the school principal from the subject school; a 
member who has knowledge of the educational mission and function of the facility; a local budget official 
or member of the local finance committee; and members of the community with architecture, engineering 
and/or construction experience. (Emphasis added) 

3 Note that this regulation differs slightly from the version in effect when the committee was formed in 2022.  
4 Section 8.12.1 of the Charter provides that “[t]he appointing authority may remove an appointed member of a 
board or committee with more than six (6) months remaining in the term for which he was appointed.” 
5 Section 8.12.2 of the Charter states:  

A public hearing shall be convened by the appointing authority not less than twenty (20) nor more than 
thirty (30) days after a notice, request or valid petition for removal is filed with the Town Clerk. Not less 
than five (5) days (see Section 8.5) prior to such hearing, written notice thereof shall be given by the Town 
Clerk to the board or committee member whose removal is sought, by mail, postage prepaid, to his last 
known address. Not less than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the time set for the commencement of the 
public hearing, the board or committee member shall be entitled to file a written statement with the 
appointing authority responding to the reasons cited for the proposed removal. The board or committee 
member may be represented by counsel at the public hearing, and shall be entitled to present evidence, call 
witnesses and, personally or through counsel, question any witnesses appearing at the hearing. 

6 In addition, up to three Associate Members, who by implication are non-voting, may be appointed.  



   
 

 

registered voters, nominated by the Sponsoring Agency, and serve only for the length of the 
project for which they were appointed. The Appointment Committee is not required to accept the 
recommendation of the Sponsoring Agency.   
 

II. KILLAM SCHOOL BUILDING COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 
 

A. Committee Formation   
 

The School Committee is the Sponsoring Agency for the Killam School building project. 
Based on conversations with the School Committee Chair, it is our understanding that the School 
Committee voted to nominate Carla Nazzaro, Sarah McLaughlin, the Town Treasurer Endri 
Kume, and a “member elected by the Select Board” for appointment as Temporary Members of 
the Permanent Building Committee. On June 13, 2022, the Appointment Committee voted 3-0 to 
appoint Carla Nazzaro, Sarah McLaughlin, Town Treasurer Endri Kume “and the fourth position 
pending the Select Board’s choice to the Killam School Permanent Building Committee” as 
Temporary Members in the formation of the Killam School Building Committee.   
 

B. Change in KSBC Membership  
 

Any change in membership must comply with applicable state law and regulations and, to 
the extent not superseded, by the Town’s Charter and General Bylaw. Significantly, the 
regulations anticipate potential changes in membership occurring over the life of a school 
building project and require proper notice of any modifications. 963 CMR 2.06 (2)(b)5. 

 
i. Change to Select Board Member on KSBC  

 
The Select Board may vote to change its selected member at any time. The Charter 

provisions regarding removal of an appointed committee member do not apply to due to the 
wording of the Appointment Committee and School Committee’s votes. Moreover, any vote of 
the Select Board to choose a different individual to serve on the KSBC will result in an 
immediate change to the committee’s membership without further action of the Appointment 
Committee or the School Committee.  

 
Section 8.10 and Section 8.12 of the Charter only apply to the actions of the “appointing 

authority.” The Select Board is not the appointing authority to the KSBC. In the case of the 
KSBC, the appointing authority is the Appointment Committee of the Permanent Building 
Committee, comprising the Town Moderator, the Chair of the Select Board, and the Chair of the 
School Committee. See General Bylaw 3.3.6. The Appointment Committee did not delegate, nor 
could it, its status as the “appointing authority” of the KSBC to the Select Board such that the 
provisions of Section 8.10 or Section 8.12 would apply.  

 
For Charter Section 8.12 to apply, the Appointment Committee would have to change its 

vote for the fourth position to be something other than the Select Board’s choice. That the 
Appointment Committee could do so is evidence that the Appointment Committee did not 
delegate its appointment powers to the Select Board. Similar analysis applies to Section 8.10. 



   
 

 

There was never a vacancy on the KSBC. At all times since 2022, the fourth position has been 
filled by the Select Board’s choice. 
 

Critically, the Select Board’s recent vote is consistent with the appointing authority’s 
vote. The Appointment Committee voted in 2022 to appoint “the Select Board’s choice to the 
Killam School Permanent Building Committee.” That the Select Board made a choice in 2024 
that differs from its choice in 2022 does not affect the Appointment Committee’s vote nor the 
Appointment Committee’s status as the “appointing authority” under the Charter.  
 

As noted above, the vote of the Select Board results in immediate reconfiguration of the 
KSBC. Generally, the School Committee, as the Sponsoring Agency, is required to make 
nominations of all Temporary Members to the Appointment Committee, which then is required 
to vote on the appointment. In this case, though, both the School Committee and the 
Appointment Committee voted to accept and appoint the individual selected by the Select Board 
as the fourth Temporary Member on the KSBC. The Select Board’s meeting minutes of June 28, 
2022, reflect that the Select Board voted to appoint Karen Herrick as its member on the Killam 
School Building Committee. Neither the Appointment Committee nor the School Committee 
need vote on the replacement given that both of those committees voted in 2022 to accept the 
individual chosen by the Select Board. The 2022 votes are broad enough and open-ended in time 
such that they remain effective.   
 

Notwithstanding the above, there is nothing that legally precludes the Select Board from 
holding a hearing prior to voting to changing its selected member. Ultimately, however, a 
hearing is not required under the terms of the Charter.  
 

ii. Change to School Committee Member on the KSBC  
 

In contrast to the Select Board, the School Committee cannot merely vote to appoint a 
new member to the KSBC. The Appointment Committee voted to appoint two specific School 
Committee members. Thus, the School Committee lacks the power to change those individuals. 
If the School Committee wishes for different representation on the KSBC, the School Committee 
must request a change from the Appointment Committee, who must follow the process in 
Section 8.12.1 and Section 8.12.2 of the Charter, to initiate a removal hearing. Once the vacancy 
occurs, the School Committee must submit a new nominee to the Appointment Committee in 
accordance with the General Bylaw.7   
 
    
 
 
  
 
 

 
7 Notice of the vacancy must also be posted by the Appointment Committee before the Appointment Committee 
may act. 



 
Town of Reading 
Meeting Minutes 

 

Page | 1 

2016-09-22 LAG 

Board - Committee - Commission - Council: 
 

            Select Board       
 

Date:  2022-06-28 Time:  7:00 PM      
 

Building:  Reading Town Hall      Location:  Select Board Meeting Room 
 

Address:  16 Lowell Street Session:  Open Session 
 

Purpose:  General Business Version:  Final 
 

Attendees: Members - Present: 
 

Mark Dockser, Carlo Bacci, Chris Haley via Zoom, Jackie McCarthy, Karen 
Herrick 
 

Members - Not Present: 
 

      
 

Others Present: 
 

Town Manager Fidel Maltez, E.A. Caitlin Nocella, Bill Brown, Nancy Docktor, 
Julie Mercier, Fire Chief Burns 
 

Minutes Respectfully Submitted By:  Caitlin Nocella 
 
 

Topics of Discussion: 
 
 

This meeting was held in person and remote via Zoom. 

Mark Dockser called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM.  

Public Comment  

Bill Brown made a comment about military markers at grave sites. The town needs to be notified when a 
veteran is being buried or else they won’t know to place a marker there.  

Nancy Docktor made a statement about her disappointment in the VASC process specifically regarding 
the Board of Health and the policy regarding treatment of incumbents vs. new applicants. 

Liaison Reports 

McCarthy thanked the first responders for their work with the flood at the Pearl Street Residence. She 
also noted Porchfest was this past weekend and it was great.  

Herrick attended Porchfest and Juneteenth.  RMLD had their annual report audit which went well.  
Herrick shared a slide showing the June RMLD PILOT payment and increasing Return on Investment from 
a 1% increase in kilowatt sales and the new formula approved in 2020.   She shared that per Interim GM 
Greg Phipps natural gas is 130% higher than 2021 and supplies 50% of the electricity in New England.   
RMLD is allowed to enter longer, more favorable power supply contracts than National Grid  which 
means that natural gas price increases are somewhat mitigated for RMLD customers. 



 

Page | 2 

She proposed sending a letter to our legislators to encourage approval of pending green communities 
regulatory updates, but because it was not on the agenda the board agreed members could send a 
letter on their own and they can put it on the next agenda to discuss sending as a board.   They also 
agreed that the Town Manager could send one prior to the next meeting. 

Bacci commented on Porchfest as well and hoped that maybe in the future it could be more walkable.  

Haley noted the School Committee reorganized. 

Dockser noted the Town Forest recently had a big conversation surrounding rules and regulations in 
regards to dogs in the town forest. He also would like to schedule the board’s next retreat for the fall.  

Town Manager Report 

Town Manager Maltez noted that our Veterans Agent Kevin Bohmiller has retired and his replacement 
started on Monday. He noted they will be holding a community meeting regarding development on the 
Oakland Road property on July 12th.  

Fire Department Update 

Fire Chief Burns gave the board a presentation on the department and its recent happenings. The 
presentation can be found in the Select Board meeting packet on the town website.  

Regional Affordable Housing Agreement 

Julie Mercier gave the board a short presentation on the changes in the agreement from when they last 
approved it two years ago.  

Haley moved to approve the Regional Affordable Housing Inter-Municipal Agreement as presented. 
The motion was seconded by McCarthy and approved with a unanimous roll call vote.  

ARPA Request – Maillet, Sommes and Morgan Conservation Land 

This is a request for $77,000 to start the design process for these conservation lands.  

RAAC has already seen and voted to approve this request.  

Haley moved to approve $77,000 of ARPA funds for Maillet, Sommes and Morgan Conservation Lands 
request as presented. The motion was seconded by Herrick and approved with a unanimous roll call 
vote.  

ARPA Request – Sanborn Lane 

Town Manager Maltez explained a resident is gifting the town some land on Sanborn Lane. It is 
unbuildable due to wetlands but it needs to be surveyed. This request is for $8,000 to do this surveying 
work.  

RAAC does not have an official vote on this request but were in support of it.  

Haley moved to approve $8,000 of ARPA funds for Sanborn Lane request as presented. The motion 
was seconded by McCarthy and approved with a unanimous roll call vote. 

Symonds Way Exploratory Committee (SWEC) 



 

Page | 3 

The board continued their conversation from last meeting regarding creating an ad-hoc committee to 
explore potential uses for the town owned land on Symonds Way.  

Bacci started off the conversation by noting he is ok with the committee starting their work in December 
as opposed to right away. The other board members agreed with Bacci. Haley noted he prefers they 
start sooner but agreed December is fine after Fidel noted he preferred December as opposed to 
September.   

Haley moved to approve the Symonds Way Exploratory Committee Charge as presented. The motion 
was seconded by Herrick and approved with a unanimous roll call vote.  

Board of Health 

The Board of Health is requesting to submit special legislation to start the process of changing their 
board from 3 to 5 members. The board was in support of this change. 

Haley moved to approve the request from the Board of Health to submit Special Legislation to 
increase the amount of member from 3 to 5 and direct the Town Manager to include a warrant article 
in November 2022 Town Meeting as necessary with the aid of Town Counsel including language 
regarding Board of Selectmen/Select Board. The motion was seconded by Bacci and approved with a 
unanimous roll call vote.  

Killam School Building Committee 

As apart of the MSBA process, the town must create a Killam Building Committee that includes a Select 
Board member.  

Herrick nominated herself with a second from Dockser. Bacci nominated himself with a second from 
Herrick.  

The board took the following vote for Bacci as the representative:  

Haley – yes; McCarthy – no; Herrick – no; Dockser – no; Bacci – yes.  

The board took the following vote for Herrick as the representative: 

Haley – yes; McCarthy- yes; Herrick -yes; Dockser – yes; Bacci -yes.  

Haley moved to appoint Herrick as the Select Board member on the Killam School Building 
Committee. The motion was seconded by Herrick and approved with a unanimous roll call vote.  

VASC Process 

Dockser noted he thought VASC had to interview everyone, incumbents and new applicants. He believes 
it is good practice and should be the policy if it isn’t.  

Haley noted the policy does not require them to interview incumbents. He explained he would have still 
recommended the incumbents over a new applicant either way because he believes past 
service/experience is important. He noted he does regret the process to a point and did try to reach out 
the applicant after the meeting.  



 

Page | 4 

McCarthy apologized to the applicant and noted they did not do this out of nepotism. McCarthy and 
Haley agreed to not interview incumbents and focused on filling the vacancies. She noted they should 
have attempted to interview all incumbent applicants seeking reappointment. She is taking this as a 
lesson learned as her first time being on VASC.  

Town Manager Maltez noted he takes the blame for this as he should have realized process and 
explained to the new VASC members. He noted he did meet with the applicant in person afterwards. He 
also noted this was a blanket decision for all boards to not interview incumbents, not just the board of 
health.  

Herrick agreed with Dockser that all incumbents should be interviewed noting that’s how it was being 
done the past couple years since 2020.  

Dockser feels they need to change the policy to ensure everyone is interviewed every year. He would 
like this on a future agenda.  

Joe White noted he was the resident who wrote the letter to the newspaper. He feels the Board and 
Committee selection process is biased towards the incumbents and he wants the policy changed.  

Haley noted he will be abstaining from voting on the Housing Authority applicants.  

Haley moved to approve all of the VASC recommendations as presented, except for the Housing 
Authority Committee. The motion was seconded by Bacci and approved with a unanimous roll call 
vote.  

Haley moved to approve the VASC recommendations for the Housing Authority as presented. The 
motion was seconded by Herrick and approved with the following roll call vote: 

Herrick – yes; Dockser- yes; McCarthy – yes; Bacci- yes; Haley – abstain.  

Future Agendas 

The board discussed future agenda items.  

Haley moved to enter into executive session under Purpose 7, To Comply with Section 22 of the OML 
– approve and review February 13, 2019, and March 26, 2019 minutes for release and to invite Fidel 
Maltez, and Caitlin Nocella to attend the meeting, and to not return to open session. The motion was 
seconded by Bacci and approved with a unanimous roll call vote.  

 
 
 
Documents Used: 
2022-06-28 Select Board Packet 



 
Town of Reading 

Meeting Minutes 

 

Page | 1 

2016-09-22 LAG 

Board - Committee - Commission - Council: 
 

                  Appointment Committee - School Building 
 

Date:  2022-06-13 Time:  5:30 PM      

 

Building:  Reading Town Hall      Location:  Conference Room  

 

Address:  16 Lowell Street Session:  Open Session 
 

Purpose:  Killam School Building Version:  Draft 
 

Attendees: Members - Present: 
 

Alan Foulds, Thomas Wise, Mark Dockser 
 

Members - Not Present: 
 

      
 

Others Present: 
 

Town Manager Fidel Maltez, Permanent Building Committee Chair Patrick 

Tompkins 
 

Minutes Respectfully Submitted By:  Jacquelyn LaVerde 
 

 

Topics of Discussion: 
 

 

Chair Alan Foulds called the meeting to order at 5:35 pm. 

 

Thomas Wise reviewed the School Committee’s discussion from their meeting on June 9th.  

The proposed School Building Appointment Committee for the new Killam Elementary 

School will be comprised of the five members of the Permanent Building Committee, two 

School Committee members: Carla Nazzaro and Sarah McLaughlin, a Select Board member 

to be voted on by the Select Board, and the School Committee recommended Town 

Treasurer Endri Kume, who is a resident and will be able to provide valuable financial 

advice.  Non-voting advisory members will include Town Manager Fidel Maltez, 

Superintendent of Schools Thomas Milaschewski, Facilities Director Joe Huggins, Killam 

Principal Sarah Leveque, and a member of the Killam staff to be determined. 

 

Mark Dockser recalled the High School Building Committee and asked whether non-board 

member residents would be represented on the Killam Committee.  Mr. Wise explained that 

the Permanent Building Committee was created as a result of not having expertise at the 

table on the High School Committee.  All Killam Committee meetings will be open, and 

anyone can and is encouraged to attend.  The Committee needs to align with MSBA 

recommendations.  Following discussion, members agreed with the proposed structure. 

On a motion by Alan Foulds, and seconded by Mark Dockser, the School Building 

Appointment Committee voted 3-0 to appoint Carla Nazzaro, Sarah McLaughlin, 

Town Treasurer Endri Kume, and the fourth position pending the Select Board’s 

choice to the Killam School Permanent Building Committee. 

 

On a motion by Alan Foulds, and seconded by Mark Dockser, the School Building 

Appointment Committee voted 3-0 to adjourn at 5:55 pm. 



Role of the Chair

Massachusetts Association of  School Committee
One McKinley Square

Boston, MA 02109

In 
collaboration 

with the 
District 

Governance 
Program

A Guide for Present and Future 
School Committee Chairs



Preface

The Massachusetts Association of School Committees is very pleased to provide this impor
tant publication on the role of the chair as part of its District Governance Support Project. 
We have specifically tailored this to both current and aspiring  chairs because it is important 
to prepare the next generation of leadership.  For many communities, the school commit tee 
chair is the face of the school district. Skillful chairs have guided their school committees by 
guiding the members through difficult debate, leading in perilous times, tackling challenging 
issues, and mentoring new members.

In preparing this document, we have been fortunate to have the benefit of experience from 
the staff of MASC who represent more than 100 years of service on and for school commit
tees.  The work of the District Governance Support Project was funded in part through a 
grant from the Race to the Top program and with the support of the Massachusetts Depart
ment of Elementary and Secondary Education.

In addition to those listed, we are also grateful to MASC Field Directors James Hardy, Michael 
Gilbert and Patricia Correira who contributed to the development of this publication and to 
former MASC President Joseph Santos of Ludlow who inspired the first professional develop
ment program for school committee chairs.

The Roles and Responsibilities of the School Committee Chair

This publication was prepared by the following individuals

Glenn Koocher, Executive Director

Dorothy Presser, Field Director

Jenifer Handy, Communications Director

Kari MacCormack, Graphic Designer

This publication was prepared in collaboration with the Department of Elementary and  
Sec ondary Education (DESE) District Governance Support Project.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION .................................................................................................. 1
THE CHAIR AS LEADER ....................................................................................... 3
OPERATING PROTOCOLS/SELF-EVALUATION. .............................................. 3
GOAL SETTING .................................................................................................... 5
MONITORING PROGRESS .................................................................................. 6
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT ...................................................................... 7
BETWEEN MEETINGS ......................................................................................... 7
EFFECTIVE AND EFFICIENT MEETINGS ........................................................... 8
 MEETING POINTERS ................................................................................... 9
 PRESENTATIONS .......................................................................................... 10
 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION .............................................................................. 11
 PUBLIC COMMENT ...................................................................................... 12
 PUBLIC HEARINGS ....................................................................................... 12
A MINUTE ON MINUTES ..................................................................................... 13
SUBCOMMITTEES ............................................................................................... 14
LEGAL COUNSEL ................................................................................................. 14
OPEN MEETING & PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS  .................................................. 15
THE CHAIR AS SPOKESPERSON ....................................................................... 16
FINAL WORDS ...................................................................................................... 16
APPENDIX
	 •	What	Protocols	Cover
	 •	Sample	Operating	Protocols
	 •	Governance	Rubric
	 •	Guidelines	for	Staff	Reports	to	the	School	Committee
	 •	Policies	for	Public	Comment	Period
	 •	Policies	for	Subcommittees	
	 •	What	Constitutes	a	Deliberation
	 •	The	Ten	Purposes	for	Executive	Session
	 •	Checklist	for	Entering	Executive	Session
	 •	Facing	the	Media:	A	Guide	to	Your	Pending	Interview
	 •	Simplified	Chart	of	Parliamentary	Procedure



INTRODuCTION
“Servant	of	the	Assembly,”	“First	among	equals,”	“Chief	Volun-		
teer.”	These	are	some	of	the	descriptions	of	Board	Chairs.	John	
Carver,	renowned	expert	on	board	governance,	describes	the	job	
of	chair	as	one		that	“requires	skilled		handling	of	group	process,	
an	ability	to	lead	a-group	fairly	but	firmly,	to	confront	and	even
to	welcome	its	diversity	and	to	adhere	to	agreed-upon	rules	for	
board	conduct.”	(“Boards	That	Make	a	Difference”	p.144).

Clearly,	being	chair	of	a	school	committee	involves	much	more	
than	presiding	over	meetings.	It	takes	time,	attention	to	detail,	
leadership	skills,	interpersonal	skills,	communications	skills	and	
knowledge		of	the	legal	obligations	of	the	board.		Chairing		a	
public	board,	such	as	a	school	committee,	has	a	unique	set	of	
challenges.	Meetings	take	place	in	public	and		Open	Meeting	
Laws	restrict	communications	that	take	place	between	meetings.	
Since	members	are	chosen	by	voters,	philosophies	and	concerns	
of	members	can	vary	greatly,	but	opportunities	to	converse	and	
get	to	know	fellow	committee	members	is	limited.	While	the	
committee	must	act	as	one,	constituents	have	unlimited	access
to	individual	members	and	often	don’t	fully	understand	an	indi	-
vidual	committee	member’s	limited	power.	Some	responsibilities-
are	defined	by	law,	but	the	grey	area	that	exists	between	law	and	
practice	is	vast.	An	effective	chair	can	successfully	lead	the	com-		
mittee	to	surmount	these	challenges,	focus	on	student	achieve-
ment	and	accomplish	the	mission,	vision	and	goals	of	the	district.

The	overarching	mission	of	every	school	committee	is	“continu-	
ous	improvement	in	student	achievement”,	according	to	the	
National	School	Boards	Association.	Further,	effective	school	
committees	play	a	critical	role	in	supporting		student		achieve-
ment	in	their	districts.	While	this	may	seem	intuitively	obvious	to	
those	who	observe	school	committees	in	action,	research	on	the	
governing	practices	of	school	committees	has	also	confirmed	this	
observation.	

Since members 
are chosen by 
voters, philoso

phies and 
concerns of 

members can 
vary greatly.

An effective chair 
can successfully 

lead the commit
tee to surmount 

these challenges, 
focus on student 

achievement and 
accomplish the 

mission, vision and 
goals of the 

district.

1



NSBA’s	research	arm,	the	Center	for	Public	Education	has	identified	eight	
traits	of	highly	effective	school	boards	that	positively	impact	student	achieve-
ment:

1.	Effective	school	boards	commit	to	a	vision	of	high	expectations	for	student	
achievement	and	quality	instruction	and	define	clear	goals	toward	that	vision.

2.	Effective	school	boards	have	strong	shared	beliefs	and	values	about	what	
is	possible	for	students	and	their	ability	to	learn,	and	of	the	system	and	its	
ability	to	teach	all	children	at	high	levels.

3.	Effective	school	boards	are	accountability	driven,	spending	less	time	on	
operational	issues	and	more	time	focused	on	policies	to	improve	student	
achievement.

4.	Effective	school	boards	have	a	collaborative	relationship	with	staff	and	the	
community	and	establish	a	strong	communications	structure	to	inform	and	
engage	both	internal	and	external	stakeholders	in	setting	and	achieving	 
dis	trict	goals.

5.	Effective	school	boards	are	data	savvy:	they	embrace	and	monitor	data,	
even	when	the	information	is	negative,	and	use	it	to	drive	continuous	im-		
provement.

6.	Effective	school	boards	align	and	sustain	resources,	such	as	professional	
development,	to	meet	district	goals.	Effective	boards	see	a	responsibility	to	
maintain	high	standards	even	in	the	midst	of	budget	challenges.

7.	Effective	school	boards	lead	as	a	united	team	with	the	superintendent,	
each	from	their	respective	roles,	with	strong	collaboration	and	mutual	trust.

8.	Effective	school	boards	take	part	in	team	development	and	training,	some		
times	with	their	superintendents,	to	build	shared	knowledge,	values	and	
commitments	for	their	improvement	efforts.

Chairs play a critical role in ensuring that their committees adhere to the district’s mission by 
guiding and focusing the committee’s work.	An	effective	committee	must	have	the	trust	and	 
re	spect	of	staff	and	community,	and	chairs	must	gain	the	respect	and	trust	of	colleagues	in	order	to	
lead	the	committee	to	success.	

This	handbook	is	designed	to	provide	information	and	guidance	to	school	committee	chairs	so	
they	can	build	the	knowledge	and	skills	necessary	to	be	effective	in	their	roles.	

2



 THE CHAIR AS A LEADER
As	“first	among	equals,”	the		chair	is	responsible	to	the	committee,	
not	the		other	way	around.		The	chair	has	only	the	authority	granted	
to	them	by	their	colleagues.	Remember,	according	to	Robert’s Rules 
of Order,	the	chair	is	the	“Servant	of	the	Assembly,	not	its	Master.”	A	
successful	chair	will	remember	the	advice:	“Lead	as	you	would	be	
led.”	

Beyond	running	effective	meetings,	the chair has the responsibility  
to guide the committee’s work.	Working	with	the		superintendent,	
the	chair	plays	a	key	role	in	keeping	the	committee	organized	and	
focused	on	the	district	mission,	vision	and	goals.	It	is	also	the	 
responsibility	of	the	chair	to	ensure	that	the	committee	stays	orga-
nized	around	regular	yearly	tasks.

In	addition	to	efficiently	guiding	the	committee’s	work,	a	good	chair	
works	to	make	the	committee	successful.	This	means,	in	essence,	
working	to	make	every	member	successful.	Members	who	feel	val-
ued,	who	feel	their	strengths	and	interests	are	being	put	to	good	use	
and		who		feel	they	are	being	treated	fairly	will	be	more	willing	and	
able	to	focus	on	the	work	of	the	committee.	Most	members	will	 
ap	preciate	working	on	a	committee	where	leadership	is	shared	rather	
than	residing	solely	with	the	chair.	It	is	up	to	the	chair	to	organize
the	committee’s	work	to	make	the	best	use	of	the	strengths	different	
committee	members	have	to	offer.	 Effectively, then, the chair can 
help the committee be greater than the sum of its parts.

OPERATING PROTOCOLS/SELF-EvALuATION
Effective	school	committees	work	to	build	trust	and	take	time	to	 
de	velop	as	a	team	with	the	superintendent.	Taking	the	time	to	discuss	
and	agree	upon	expectations	of	HOW	the	team	will	work	together	
will	allow	members	to	concentrate	on	WHAT	needs	to	be	accom-		
plished.	Discussing	how	to	navigate	the	many	grey	areas	that	exist	
before	they	become	issues	will	prevent	problems	that	get	in	the	way
of	focusing	on	student	achievement.	One	way	to	do	this	is	to	agree	
upon	a	set	of	Operating Protocols	that	guide	how	the	committee	and	
superintendent	team	will	work	together.		

A good chair 
works to make 
the committee 
successful.  This 

means, in 
essence, working 

to make every 
member 

successful.

Taking the time to 
discuss and agree 

upon expecta
tions of HOW the 

team will work 
together will allow 
members to con
centrate on WHAT 

needs to be 
accomplished. 

3



Operating	Protocols	cover	the	following	topics:
•	A	statement	of	purpose
•	Conduct	of	Business	(Communications	and	Operations)
•	Scope	of	Responsibilities
•	Standards	of	Conduct
•	Staying	on	Track

Some	sample	protocols	are	in	the	Appendix.		

The	school	committee	needs	to	take	responsibility	for	itself	-	for	how	
well	it	has	governed,	conducted	meetings,	built	relationships,	and	 
accomplished	its	own	goals,	etc.	The chair can oversee a periodic 
self-evaluation so the committee can reflect on its collective work 
and each individual can reflect on there own work.  An	annual	work-
shop,	in	addition	to	working	on	goals,	can	provide	the	opportu	nity	for	
this	reflection	and	discussion.	In	addition,	a	workshop	held	soon	after	
a	committee	has	reorganized	can	become	a	time	to	orientnew	mem-
bers.	It	also	provides	the	opportunity	to	review	and,	if	ap	propriate,	
revise	the	Operating Protocols. 

Operating	Protocols	cover	areas	of	school	committee	operations/
relationships	both	at	and	outside	of	meetings.	While	the	chair	cer-
tainly	has	a	large	responsibility	to	ensure	that	the	work	of	the	com-
mittee	at	meetings	runs	smoothly	and	stays	on	target,	the chair has 
a responsibility outside the meeting room	as	well.	Members	come	
to	the	committee	with	different	interests,	different	philosophical	view		
points,	different	skills	and	different	communication	styles.		Some-
how,	all	these	differences	must	combine	to	create	a	synergy	if	the	
committee	is	to	be	productive.	The	alternative	is	a	committee	where	
differences	get	in	the	way	and	nothing	gets	done.	The	skillful	chair	
can	work	with	members	to	mentor	them	and	to	help	resolve	differ-
ences	or	other	factors	that	are	getting	in	the	way	of	productive	work.

Operating	Protocols	can	provide	a	basis	for	talking	with	members	if	
problems	arise.	While	there	are	no	fixed	rules	in	dealing	with	mem-
bers	who	make	thoughtful	debate,	principled	dissent,	collaboration,	
unity	and	effective	meetings	difficult,	a thoughtful chair could be 
an important mentor and guide to such potentially disruptive 
individuals.		Superintendents	can	often	be	helpful	in	giving		
guidance,	but	may	be	reluctant	to	intervene.	A	chair	who	makes	sure	
every	committee	member’s	opinion	is	heard	and	valued	will	go	a	
long	way	toward	ensuring	that	committee	members	stay	focused	on	

Operating proto
cols can provide 
a basis for talking 
with members if 
problems arise.

4



the	work	at	hand	rather	than	becoming	distracted	by	interpersonal	
bickering	and	personal	agendas.

A	self-evaluation	can	be	conducted	using	a	committee’s	own	Oper-
ating	Protocols	or	a	different	tool.	Using	the	committee’s	protocols,	
individual	members	can	rate	the	extent	to	which	each	protocol	was	
met		on		a	scale	to		set	the		basis	for		starting	a	discussion.		Looking	
both	at	areas	where	there	is	agreement		that	protocols	need	work	
and	areas	where	members	have	differing	viewpoints	can	lead	to	
conversations	about	how	to	improve	or	how	to	alter	the	protocols	to	
better	serve	the	committee.

Other	tools	for	self-evaluation	are	available	from	MASC	and	may	be	
particularly	useful	if	a	committee	has	not	yet	established	Operating	
Protocols.	A	governance	rubric,	based	on	the	District	Governance	
Program	is	included		in	the	Appendix.		No	matter	what	tool	is	used,	
the	value	of	a	self-evaluation	lies	in	the	opportunity	to	reflect	on	how	
the	committee	is	working	together	and	what	it	might	do	to	improve.

Goal SettinG
Setting	goals	has	several	components.	The	first	is	articulating	the	
mission,	vision	and	overarching	goals	(sometimes	referred	to	as	a	
strategic	plan,	strategic	objectives	or	district	improvement	plan)	for	
the	district.	The	committee	has	a	role	in	ensuring	that	goals	set	in	
school	improvement	plans	and	other	district	goal-setting	documents	
are	aligned	to	the	overall	district	goals.		Secondly,	the		committee	
must	ensure	that	shorter	range,	specific	goals	are	in	place	to	move	
the	district	ever	closer	to	achieving	its	vision.		This	involves	setting	
SMART	goals*	for	the	superintendent	and	setting	SMART	goals	
for	what	the	committee	hopes	to	achieve	in	the	short	term.	For	the	
committee,	this	may	involve	policy	work,	deciding	how	resources	in	
the	district,	particularly	in	the	budget,	can	best	be	leveraged	to	set	
the	district	on	the	right	course,	or	what	changes	to	seek	in	a	contract	
negotiation.	These	specific,	SMART	goals	for	both	the	superinten-
dent	and	the	committee	should		include	key	actions	and	bench-
marks.

With the superintendent, the chair should plan adequate time for 
the committee to have these discussions.		It	is	up	to	the	committee	
to	ensure	that	goal-setting	is	done	with	integrity	and	that	the	longer	

The value of a 
selfevaluation lies 
in the opportunity 
to reflect on how 
the committee is 
working together 
and what it might 

do to improve.

* SMART goals are Specific, Measurable, Attainable, Realistic, and Timely.

5

The committee 
must ensure that 

shorter range, 
specific goals are 
in place to move 
the district ever 

closer to achiev
ing its vision. 



term	goals	reflect	the	community’s	vision	and	values.	The	shorter	term	
goals	should	be	also	SMART	and	should	help	drive	the	district	toward	
achieving	the	articulated	vision.

Often,	a	workshop	or	retreat—at	least	annually—will	allow	time	for	the	
school	committee	and	superintendent	to	have	these	in-depth	discus-
sions	and	for	everyone	to	have	ample	input	to	reach	consensus.	A	
workshop	often	takes	place	in	a	less	formal	setting	than	a	regular	
business		meeting,	allowing	for	a	more	free-flowing		dialogue.		While	
the	workshop	is	a	posted	public	meeting,	it	need	not	be	a	time	when	
decisions	are	finalized,	but	rather	when	information	is	exchanged		that	
may	lead	to	a	formal	decision	at	a	later	time.	In	the	case	of	the	super-
intendent	evaluation,	the	information	from	the	workshop	may	go	to	a	
subcommittee	that	will	work	with	the	superintendent	to	draft	SMART	
goals	for	consideration	by	the	full	committee.

MonitorinG ProGreSS 
After	goals	have	been	set,	the	committee	has	a	responsibility	to	
monitor	the	progress	toward	the	goals.		The chair can keep the 
committee organized around monitoring progress and routine tasks 
by working with the superintendent to develop a year-long agenda.  
The	key	ac	tions	and	benchmarks	in	the	superintendent	and	committee	
SMART	goals	can	provide	a	guide	to	scheduling	the	presentations	
on	student	achievement	and	goals	throughout	the	year.	A	year-
long	agenda	gives	committee	members	the	opportunity	to	convey	
questions	well	in	advance	of	presentations	and	it	gives	presenters	
ample	time	to	pre	pare.	In	addition,	a	year-long	agenda	can	help	
keep	track	of	annual	“administrative”	tasks	of	the	committee,	such	as	
handbook	approvals,	public	hearings,	policy	review,	superintendent	
evaluation	and	budget	development.	Having	a	year-long	agenda	
tied	to	district	goals	and	addressing	concerns	will	remind	committee	
members	that	their	con	cerns	have	a	place	on	the	agenda	at	the	
appropriate	time.	It	also	helps	ensure	that	everyone’s	voice	is	heard	
and	that	all	committee	members	have	input	into	the	direction	of	the	
committee	and	the	district.

Effective	school	committees	are	accountability	driven	and	use	data	to	
monitor	progress.	Often	data	on	student	achievement	comes	to	the	
committee	in	the	form	of	presentations	at	school	committee	meetings.	
Using	goal	documents,	the	chair	can	work	with	the	superintendent	to	
develop	a	schedule	of	academic	presentations	that	inform	both	the	
committee	and	the	community	about	the	progress	toward	the	goals	

6

 It is up to the 
committee to 

ensure that goal
setting is done 

with integrity and 
that the longer 

term goals reflect 
the community’s 
vision and values. 

A yearlong 
agenda gives 

committee 
members the 
opportunity to 

convey questions 
well in advance of 
presentations and 

it gives present
ers ample time to 

prepare.  



and	about	the	process	of	continuous	improvement	in	the	district.	 
Pre	sentations	can	also	inform	the	committee	of	what	future	actions	
may	be	needed	to	jump-start	or	continue	progress.

ProfeSSional DeveloPMent
Committee		members	need	a	certain	base	of		knowledge	in	order	to	
be	effective.	This	includes	a	working	knowledge	of	the	school	district
—the		organization,	the		programs		and		curriculum,	the		budget,	data	
to	monitor	progress,	and	other	factors.	It	also	includes	a	knowledge	
of	the	laws	and	regulations	related	to	education	and	the	work	of	the
committee.	Further,	it	includes	keeping	current	on	developments	
in	education	and	in	state	and	federal	legislation	that	may	affect	the	
district.	Knowledge	of	the	school	district	is	often	gained	from	presen-
tations	at	school	committee	meetings.	Other	information	comes	from	
outside	sources,	such	as	MASC.	A chair can help members develop 
the skills and knowledge they need by mentoring new members, 
or asking other members to take on the role of mentor.		They	can	
also	encourage	members	to	attend	conferences	and	events	to	build	
knowledge,	such	as	MASC	conferences	and	training	events	and	
MASC	Division	Meetings.	The	chair	can	invite	state	legislators	to	
meetings	to	present	information	on	relevant	state	activities	and	to	
help	the	legislators	understand	the	needs	and	challenges	of	the	
district.

Between MeetinGS
Beyond		simply	running	the	meetings,	the	chair	has	a	significant	role	
to	play	between	meetings.	Often,	this	is	where	the	communication	
and	interpersonal	skills	of	the	chair	come	into	play.	The	chair	can	
facilitate		communications	between	members	and	the	superinten-
dent,	can	assist	members	in	getting	information	they	need	to	make	
decisions	and	can	help	build	relationships,	or	rebuild	them	if	things	
go	awry.	 The ability to ask questions, to listen and to understand 
communication styles can be invaluable tools to a school committee 
chair.		In	addition,	the	ability	to	explain	the	roles	and	responsibilities	
of	the	committee	vs.	those	of	the	superintendent	and	to	keep	mem-
bers	true	to	their	operating	protocols	is	important.		

The chair often has the responsibility for making sure that informa-
tion flows to the appropriate parties between meetings.		Informa-	
tion	exchange	can	take	different	forms	and	have	different	levels	of	
urgency.	Members	may	need	to	be	informed	of	a	critical	incident		in	
a	timely	way.	The	superintendent	may	need	to	be	informed	of	parent	

Committee 
members need 
a certain base 

of knowledge in 
order to be 
effective.

7

Effective school 
committees are 
accountability 
driven and use 
data to monitor 

progress.

A chair can help 
members devel
op the skills and 
knowledge they 
need by mentor

ing new members, 
or asking other 

members to take 
on the role of 

mentor.  



or	constituent	concerns.	The	chair	can	help	ensure	that	member	re-
quests	for	information	get	to	the	superintendent	and	receive	a	proper	
response.	

Often,	the	chair	has	information	that	the	rest	of	the	committee	is	not	
privy	to.		The	superintendent	may	use	the	chair	as	a	sounding	board	for	
potential	or	upcoming	decisions	that	they	are	not	yet	ready	to	pres-
ent	to	the	full	committee.	The	superintendent	may	inform	the	chair	of	
a	developing	situation	concerning	staff	or	students	that	is	confidential.	
For	example,	a	superintendent	may	know	that	an	administrator	will	be	
resigning,	but	doesn’t	want	to	let	others	know	until	the	written	resigna-
tion	is	in	hand.	As	with	many	other	aspects	of	chairing	a	committee,	
there	are	not	many	hard	and	fast	rules	about	conveying	information.	In	
general,	though,	respecting	confidentiality	and	avoiding	surprises	are	
important.	There	are	times	when	the	chair	may	be	the	conduit	for	com-
munication	and	times	when	they	are	a	gatekeeper.	Discussions	with	the	
full	committee	about	roles	and	responsibilities,	as	well	as	discussions
about	expectations	can	help	both	the	chair	and		superintendent	devel-
op	a	good	sense	of	what	information	members	of	the	governance	team	
expect	and	feel	is	important	so	they	can	act	accordingly.

effective anD efficient MeetinGS
It	is	up	to	the	chair	to	work	with	the	superintendent	on	planning	meet-
ings	that	focus	on	student	achievement	and	goals.	But,	that’s	just	one	
part	of	running	an	efficient	meeting.

Efficient	meetings	start	with	a	well-planned	agenda.	A	good	meeting	
will	include	a	range	of	items	such	as	academic	presentations,	monitor-
ing	progress	toward	goals	and	administrative	matters.	A	clear	agenda	
will	let	people	know	what	topics	will	be	considered,	the	outcome	ex-
pected	for	each	item	and	any	next	steps	that	will	occur.	For	example,	
whether	an	item	is	a	matter	for	information,	for	discussion	or	for	a	for-
mal	vote.	Some	committees	find	it	helpful	to	note	anticipated	times	for	
discussion	to	help	keep	the	meeting	on	track.

Most	often,	the	chair	will	work	with	the	superintendent	to	plan	the	
agenda,	however,	the	agenda	belongs	to	the	committee.	Members	may	
request	that	items	be	placed	on	the	agenda.	If	a	chair	does	not	feel	the	
item	is	appropriate	for	the	requested	agenda,	they	may	suggest	a	bet-
ter	time	to	address	the	item	based	on	topics	on	the	year-long	agenda,	
or	explain	the	rationale	for	keeping	it	off.		The	committee	can	override	
the	chair,	by	majority	vote,	to	place	an	item	on	the	agenda.

Respecting 
confidentiality 
and avoiding 
surprises are 
important.

8

A clear 
agenda will let 
people know 

what topics will 
be considered 

and the 
outcome 

expected for 
each item. 



The	Open	Meeting	Law	requires	that,	when	a	meeting	is	posted,	a	
summary	of	the	items	that	“the	chair	reasonably	anticipates”	being	
discussed	be	included	in	the	posting.	If	something	new	arises	after	the	
posting,	the	summary	can	be	amended;	it	is	not	subject	to	the	48-hour	
advance	notice.	If	something	arises	that	the	chair	did	not	reasonably	
anticipate,	it	would	not	be	a	violation	of	the	Open	Meeting	Law	to	dis-
cuss	the	topic.

Effective	school	committees	have	varied	and	purposeful	meetings	
focused	on	student	achievement.	The	agenda	should	reflect	this	em-
phasis.		Handling	routine	items	through	a	consent	agenda	is	one	way	
to	clear	time	for	meaningful	discussion	on	student	achievement	related	
topics.		

MeetinG PointerS
The chair sets the tone for the meeting.  Most	certainly,	being	well-pre-
pared	and	well-organized	is	important.	Making	sure	attendees	feel	wel-
come	and	know	what	to	expect	is	important	as	well.	Members	should	
have	done	their	homework	before	the	meeting	and	be	prepared	to	
discuss	and	act	upon	the	items	that	come	before	the	committee.		This	
will	help	the	meeting	flow	efficiently.		And,	while		rules	are		important,	
the	chair	should	remain	flexible	enough	so	that	the	meeting	isn’t	too	
technically	managed	or	doesn’t	give	the	impression	that	the	meeting	is	
more	about	order	than	about	outcome.

Committees	generally	have	a	set	of	rules	they	follow	to	facilitate	an	
effective	meeting.	Often,	this	is	Roberts Rules of  Order Newly Revised 
or	some	variation.	Smaller	committees	are	very	often	more	relaxed	in	
applying	Roberts Rules,	but	a	set	of	agreed-upon	procedures	is	neces-
sary	for	an	orderly	meeting.	At	a	minimum,	the	chair	should	follow	the	
agenda	unless	there	is	a	good	reason	to	depart	from	it	and	enforce	the	
rule	that	only	the	speaker	recognized	by	the	chair	has	the	floor.	In	addi-
tion,	the	chair	should	make	certain	that	everyone	who	wants	the	oppor-
tunity	to	speak	has	the	opportunity	to	do	so	before	others	speak	again.

In	conducting	the	meeting,	there	are	a	few	pointers,	gathered	by	MASC	
in	working	with	school	committee	chairs,	which	can	be	helpful	in	ensur-
ing	a	successful	meeting:

•	Chairs	need	to	be	cautious	about	taking	liberties	with	procedures	for	
themselves.	Doing	so	invites	others	to	do	the	same.
•	The	chair	can	sometimes	expedite	action	by	declaring	consensus	on	

Members should 
have done their 
homework be
fore the meet

ing and be pre
pared to discuss 
and act upon 
the items that 
come before 

the committee. 

9

Effective school 
committees 
have varied 

and purposeful 
meetings 

focused on 
student 

achievement.  



a	matter	to	move	the	meeting	along.	For	example,	the	chair	can	state:	
“Without	objection	we	will	declare	the	minutes	approved;	proceed		to	
the	next	agenda	item;	take	an	item	out	of	order;	or	close	public	com-
ment.”	At	the	same	time,	a	chair	should	be	cautious	of	declaring		 	 	
unanimity	when	members	truly	want	to	express	their	opinion	and			 	
record	their	votes.

•	Similarly,	chairs	should	avoid	“dead	air	time”	at	meetings.	Once	peo-		
ple	have	had	a	chance	to	voice	their	opinion,	the	chair	should	move	the	
discussion	along	rather	than	allowing	the	opportunity	for	repetitious	or	
unnecessary	comment.

PreSentationS
Academic	presentations	by	administrators	or	district	staff	are	an	integral	
part	of	school	committee	business.	They	help	keep	the	committee	and	
the	public	informed	of	the	ongoing	work	of	the	district.		Presentations	 
are	also	an	important	tool	for	the	school	committee	in	monitoring	the	
progress	of	district	goals.	They	can	also	serve	to	keep	the	community	
ap	prised	of	the	activities,	progress	and	needs	of	the	schools.	Success-
ful	presentations	provide	the	committee	with	the	information	it	needs	to	
evaluate	progress	toward	the	district’s	goals.		

The chair plays a key role in making sure presentations are substan-
tive and make good use of the committee’s time.	To	expedite	and	help	
ensure	that	presentations	are	as	efficient	and	informative	as	possible,	the	
chair	might	want	to	share	some	important	guidelines	with	presenters	in	
advance.	Presenters	should	have	clear	direction	on	the	information	the	
committee	would	like	to	hear	and	the	questions	it	would	like	answered	
so	that	the	committee	gets	the	information	it	needs	to	assess	progress.	
Clear	guidelines	also	prevent	time	being	spent		providing	the	commit-
tee	with	information	that	is	not	relevant	to	what	they	want	to	hear	about.	
Some	committees	have	developed	outlines	to	give	guidance	to	present		
ers	for	meaningful	and	well-targeted	presentations.		A	sample	outline	can	
be	found	in	the	Appendix.

The	chair	can	also	work	with	the	superintendent	to	provide	members	
with	materials	for	presentations	in	advance,	most	often	in	the	meeting	
packet.	When	members	can	prepare	in	advance,	presenters	can	use	
their	time	to	highlight	the	important	materials	and	allow	more	time	for	
discussion.

10

Academic pre
sentations are 

an integral part 
of school com
mittee business.  
They help keep 
the committee 
and the public 
informed of the 
ongoing work of 

the district. 



PuBlic ParticiPation
Public	participation	at	school	committee	meetings	may	take	several	
different	forms.	It	can	range	from	a	public	comment	period	at	a	regular	
school	committee	meeting	to	public	hearings	to	public	forums	to	meet-
ings	following	a	critical	event.	There	are	some	similarities	and	some	
differences	in	how	these	various	meetings	are	handled.

No	matter	the	reason	for	public	participation,	it	is	imperative	to	have	
clear	and	consistent	procedures	in	place	and	shared	with	the	public.		
This	allows	the	committee	to	maintain	civil	discourse	even	when	emo-
tions	are	high.		The	procedures	should	require	that	people	are	treated	
with	respect,	even	when	they	disagree.

The	chair	should	set	a	welcoming	tone	for	the	meeting	and	make	sure	
people	are	aware	of	the	information	they	need	regarding	the	purpose	
of	the	meeting,	protocols,	time	frame	and	speakers.		

The	procedures	for	public	participation	can	be	reviewed	by	the	chair	
at	the	start	of	the	public	comment	period.		Many	committees	also	find	
it	useful	to	print	the	procedures	on	the	meeting	agenda.		They	can	also	
be	posted	prominently	in	the	meeting	room.		MASC’s	guidelines	for	
public	comment	are	in	the	Appendix.

Even	with	the	procedures	posted,	it	is	important	that	the	chair	enforce	
the	rules	and	demand	that	speakers	show	common	courtesy	and	deco-
rum.		When	the	rules	are	applied	fairly,	everyone	feels	they	can	express	
their	views	safely	and	will	be	more	willing	to	participate.		They	will	also	
be	more	willing	to	accept	the	ultimate	decision	of	the	committee	if	they	
feel	they	have	had	a	chance	to	be	heard.		

Some	general	guidelines	include:
•	Designate	a	limited	time	block	for	the	public	comment	period.		The	
time	can	always	be	extended	by	the	chair.
•	Provide	a	sign-up	sheet	and	call	on	speakers	in	the	order	in	which	
they	signed	up.
•	Set	and	enforce	time	limits	for	speakers.		It	can	be	helpful	to	have	a	
timekeeper	to	make	sure	that	time	limits	are	equitably	enforced.
•	Remind	speakers	that	their	remarks	must	address	items	within	the	
purview	of	the	committee	and	that	comments	about	staff	(other	than	
the	superintendent)	and	students	are	out	of	order.
•	Ensure	that	confidentiality	is	protected.	This	included	confidential	
information	related	to	students	or	personnel,	health	or	medical	

The public 
should be aware 

of whether or 
not the 

committee will 
be responding 
to comments 

and questions. 

11

A school 
committee 
meeting is a 
meeting in 

public, not a 
public meeting. 



information	and	rumor	presented	as	fact	that	compromises	the	privacy	
rights	of	stakeholders.
•	Invite	speakers	to	express	agreement	with	a	previous	speaker	rather	
than	repeating	the	same	points.		This	can	allow	more	people	the	op-
portunity	to	address	the	committee	during	the	allotted	time	for	public	
comment.
•	Remind	speakers	that	all	comments	must	be	addressed	to	the	chair.		
This	is	a	time	for	the	committee	to	hear	from	the	public,	not	to	engage	
in	dialogue	or	answer	questions.		Develop	procedures	for	responding	
to	questions	as	appropriate.
•	Remind	the	public	that	only	one	person	has	the	floor—permission	to	
speak-at	any	given	time.		Therefore,	clapping,	booing,	and	heckling	are	
out	of	order.		People	who	disrupt	a	meeting	and	refuse	to	listen	to	the	
directions	of	the	chair	can	be	removed	from	the	meeting.

PuBlic coMMent 
A	school	committee	meeting	is	a	meeting	in	public,	not	a	public	meet-
ing.	Therefore,	the	public	can	only	participate	with	the	permission	of	
the	chair.	A	public	comment	period	as	a	standing	agenda	item	at	a	
regular	business	meeting,	howev	er,	fosters	community	engagement	
and	can	provide	the	committee	with	some	valuable	feedback.

PuBlic HearinGS
Public	hearings	usually	deal	with	a	particular	subject,	often	a	timely	
matter	of	interest.	They	may	be	in	response	to	a	recent	crisis	or	local	
issue.	Annually,	the	school	committee	will	also	conduct	one	or	more	
public	hearings	on	the	budget.	Sometimes,	committees	host	hearings	
on	controversial	issues	such	as	school	closings,	redistricting	or	other	
topics	that	affect	many	people.		

Public	hearings	often	begin	with	a	welcome	and	introduction,	explana-
tion	of	the	purpose	of	the	meeting,	protocols	and	timelines	and	other	
information	that	attendees	need	to	know.		The chair should also ex-
plain the time frame for the meeting, who will speak, when public dis-
cussion will take place and what present and future outcomes might 
be.		It		may	also	be	appropriate	to	provide	a	background	or	summary	
of	the	meeting	topic.	For	example,	if	the	public	hearing	deals	with	a	
proposal	to	redistrict	the	schools,	the	superintendent	might	explain	
the	planning	process,	groups	involved,	information	gathered	and	
preliminary	ac	tions	prior	to	the	meeting.

12



The	chair	has	a	special	challenge	during	these	meetings	to	build	
cred	ibility	for	the	committee,	establish	an	orderly	process	for	
discussion,	engage	the	public	and	keep	the	focus	on	the	matter	at	
hand.	The	chair	also	has	a	responsibility	to	diffuse	tension	or	anxieties.		
When	the	topic	of	a	public	meeting	is	controversial	or	emotionally	
charged,	the	chair	must	often	deal	not	only	with	the	efficiency	of	
the	meeting,	but	also	possible	misinformation.	Veteran chairs and 
town meeting moderators advise their colleagues to remain calm 
at all times and think carefully about how what they say or do may 
be perceived by the public. 	A	chair	can	also	help	diffuse	tension	by	
assuring	the	public	that	there	will	be	ample	op	portunity	to	participate	
and	by	encouraging	all	to	follow	the	appropri	ate	procedure	for	
speaking	and	responding.

No	matter	how	large	the	meeting	or	how	controversial	the	issue,	if	a	
meeting	is	run	fairly,	the	public	generally	accepts	the	rules	and	guid-
ance	of	the	chair.	Even	if	a	decision	is	made	after	the	meeting,	the	
public	is	more	likely	to	accept	it	if	the	chair	is	effectively	impartial.

tecHnoloGY anD tHe oPen MeetinG law
With	the	advent	of	technology	and	the	opportunity	for	instant	feed-
back,	especially	during	remote	meetings,	some	members	find	that	
they	are	being	contacted,	via	text	or	email,	by	constituents	during	a	
meeting.		The	constituents	may	have	questions	or	comments	that	they	
wish	the	member	to	convey.		This	is	problematic	in	two	ways.		First,	the	
members	are	allowing	participation	in	the	meeting	without	permission	
of	the	chair,	which	is	both	a	violation	of	the	OML	and	against	Robert’s 
Rules. 	In	entertaining	the	comments,	the	member	has	allowed	the	
meeting	to	become	a	meeting	with	the	public,	not	in	public.		And,	it	is	
those	people	privileged	to	have	the	contact	information	of	a	particular	
member	who	have	input,	which	is	neither	fair	nor	equitable.		Members	
should	understand	that	this	type	of	communication	is	off	limits.

a Minute on MinuteS
At	times,	minutes	can	become	a	point	of	contention	for	school	com-
mittees.	Members	may	want	to	make	sure	their	comments	are	reflect-
ed	in	the	minutes,	make	sure	their	name	appears	prominently	in	the	
minutes	or	wish	to	revise	the	minutes	for	various	other	reasons.	The	
chair,	working	with	the	recording	secretary,	can	help	diffuse	this	issue	
by	having	a	good	understanding	of	what	minutes	should	contain.

13

When the topic 
of a public 
meeting is 

controversial 
or emotionally 
charged, the 

chair must often 
deal not only 

with the 
efficiency of the 

meeting, but 
also possible 

misinformation.



Minutes are 
not a verbatim 
transcript of the 

meeting.

Minutes	must	include	“the	date,	time	and	place	of	the	meeting,	names	
of		all	committee	members	present		or	absent,	a	summary	of	the	
discussions	on	each	subject,	a	list	of	documents	and	other	exhib	its	
used	at	the	meeting,	the	decisions	made	and	the	actions	taken	at	each	
meeting	including	the	record	of	all	votes.”	(MGL	Chapter	30A,	Section	
22)	School	committee	minutes	generally	also	list	others	pres	ent	at	the	
meeting	including	the	superintendent	and	other	district	faculty	and	
staff	members.		When	members	of	the	public	speak	dur	ing	public	
comment	period,	their	names	should	be	in	the	record.

Minutes	are	not,	however,	a	verbatim	transcript	of	the	meeting.		The 
minutes should be a summary that allows a reasonable person to 
understand what was discussed at a meeting. 	If	a	member	wants	to	
make	sure	that	their	comments	are	recorded	they	should,	when	speak-
ing	at	the	meeting,	state	“I	would	like	the	record	to	reflect	...”	

SuBcoMMitteeS
School	committees	can	use	subcommittees	to	make	more	efficient	use	
of	their	time.	The	most	common	subcommittees	are	Budget;	Policy;	
Buildings	and	Grounds;	Negotiations;	and	Personnel.	Ad	hoc	subcom-
mittees	that	address	particular	issues	are	often	created	as	well.

Subcommittees	can	do	preliminary	work	and	bring	recommendations	
to	the	full	committee.	For	example,	a	Policy	subcommittee	can	work	
with	administrators	to	write	or	revise	policies	and	bring	the	recom-
mended	policies	to	the	full	committee	for	adoption.	An	ad	hoc	sub-
committee	on	redistricting	can	hold	public	forums	and	gather	data	to	
bring	back	to	the	full	committee	with	a	recommended	action.	

Most commonly, the chair appoints members to subcommittees with 
the approval of the full committee.	This	is	a	way	to	share	leadership	
among	committee	members	and	to	effectively	engage	the	strengths	
and	interests	of	members.	The	chair	should	also	ensure	that	the	re-
sponsibility	of	each	subcommittee	is	clearly	defined	as	well	as	the	
expectation	for	reporting	back	to	the	full	committee.	MASC’s	sample	
policies	regarding	subcommittees	can	be	found	in	the	Appendix.

leGal counSel
School	committees	engage	legal	counsel	for	a	variety	of	purposes	
including	general	education	law,	collective	bargaining,	special	educa-
tion,	bonding	and	construction	matters	and	special	litigation.	Often,	

14

School commit
tees can use 

subcommittees 
to make more 
efficient use of 

their time.



different	lawyers	are	retained	for	different	purposes.	The	superinten-
dent	will	need	access	to	counsel	for	various	confidential	personnel	
matters	and	other	matters	that	fall	under	their	management.		In	these	
instances,	there	will	be	information	that	cannot	be	shared	with	the	
committee.	While	the	superintendent	will	need	access,	it	is	impor	tant	
to	remember	that	the	attorney	works	for	and	represents	the	school	
committee.	This	means	that	in	matters	that	may	involve	the	school	
committee	and	the	superintendent,	counsel	represents	and	acts	on	
behalf	of	the	committee.

Generally, committee access to counsel is through the chair.		Unlim-
ited	access	to	the	school	committee	attorney	can	result	in	significant	
legal	expense.	For	that	reason,	someone	must	manage	access	to	the	
attorney.	MASC	recommends	that	school	committee	members	go	
through	the	chair	before	receiving	authorization	to	call	the	commit-
tee’s	attorney.

oPen MeetinG & PuBlic recorDS lawS
The	chair	and	the	superintendent	should	be	familiar	with	the	Open	
Meeting	Law	to	ensure	it	is	appropriately	followed		by	the	committee.	
The	chair	can	play	a	key	role	in	helping	committee	members	avoid	
run	ning	afoul	of	the	law.

Everyone	on	the	committee	should	be	aware	of	the	definition	of	a	
“deliberation”	and	avoid	deliberating	on	public	business	outside	of	a	
meeting.	Deliberation	should	occur	only	when	a	quorum	is	present	at	
a	properly	posted	meeting	of	the	committee.	The	committee	should	
also	have	a	clear	understanding	of	the	appropriate	use	of	email	for	
administrative	purposes,	the	dangers	of	the	“reply	all”	button	on	email	
and	the	pitfalls	of	serial	deliberations.	 The committee and superinten-
dent should have developed protocols for email responses to constit-
uents to avoid violating the Open Meeting Law. (A	copy	of	the	open	
meeting	law	definition	of	“deliberation”	is	included	in	the	Appendix.)

At	the	beginning	of	the	meeting,	the	chair	should	determine	if		
anyone	is	recording	the	meeting.	Reporters	often	use	a	recording	
device	as	well	as	taking	notes.	Anyone	who	is	recording	the	meeting	
should	let	the	chair	know	that	they	are	doing	so.	The	chair	must	
announce	if	the	meeting	is	being	recorded	and/or	broadcast.

The chair should be aware of the reasons for holding an Executive 
Session and the limitations on the discussions that can occur in 

15

In matters that 
may involve 
the school 

committee and 
the superinten
dent, counsel 

represents and 
acts on behalf 

of the 
committee.  

Everyone on 
the committee 

should be aware 
of the definition 
of a “delibera
tion” and avoid 
deliberating on 
public business 

outside of a 
meeting.



There are some 
minutes which 
should remain 
confidential 

even if it seems 
the business is 
concluded.

Executive Session. 	The	chair	must	also	know	the	procedure	for	entering	
into	Executive	Session	and	remember	that	all	votes	taken	in	Executive	
Session	must	be	roll	call	votes.	A	checklist	of	the	reasons	for	an	Execu-
tive	Session	is	included	in	the	Appendix.

Periodically,	at	least	annually,	the	chair	and	superintendent	should	re-
view	Executive	Session	minutes.		The	committee	should	vote	on	the	
release	those	for	which	there	is	no	longer	a	reason	to	keep	the	minutes	
confidential.	There	are	some	min	utes	which	should	remain	confidential	
even	if	it	seems	the	business	is	concluded.	For	example,	even	though	
contract	negotiations	have	been	completed,	minutes	may	contain	infor-
mation	or	strategies	that	will	be	relevant	in	the	next	negotiation.	A	com-
mittee	would	not	want	the	union	to	have	this	information.	There	may	also	
be	minutes	where	some	information	needs	to	be	redacted	to	protect	
privacy	or	minutes	that	will	never	be	appropriate	to	release.	A	hearing	
involving	a	stu	dent	discipline	issue	would	be	one	such	example.

Most	often,	the	secretary	for	the	school	committee	or	superintendent	
will	take	responsibility	for	posting	meetings	and	subcommittee	meet-
ings.		The	chair	should	also	keep	the	secretary	informed	of	any	addi-
tional	meetings	that	might	arise	so	that	nothing	is	unintentionally	over-
looked.		Workshops	should	be	posted	as	open	meetings.	

tHe cHair aS SPoKeSPerSon
Most	often,	the	chair	is	the	spokesperson	for	the	school	committee	
and	represents	the	committee	at	certain	school	events.		In dealing with 
the media and with the public, it is important to remember that the 
chair represents the committee and not their own views. 	The	chair	
can	explain	the	votes	and	decisions	the	committee	has	made	and	the	
rationale	behind	those	votes.		They	can	talk	about	ongoing	committee	
work,	but	should	be	wary	of	making	predictions	about	outcomes.		Some	
pointers	on	facing	the	media	are	included	in	the	Appendix.

final worDS
School	committees	have	the	responsibility	to	represent	the	vision	and	
values	of	the	community	as	they	work	toward	continuous	improvement	
of	student	achievement	within	their	district.		The	chair,	the	“Servant	of	
the	Assembly,”	has	the	responsibility	of	guiding	the	committee’s	work		
not	a	small	or	a	simple	task.	We	hope	this	guide	provides	chairs	with	
helpful	information	as	they	fulfill	their	roles.	Please	feel	free	to	contact	
MASC	for	any	additional	information	or	resources.

16



APPENDIX  

•		What	Protocols	Cover

•		Sample	Operating	Protocols

•		Governance	Rubric

•		Guidelines	for	Staff	Reports	to	the	School	Committee

•		Policies	for	Public	Comment	Period

•		Policies	for	Subcommittees

•		What	Constitutes	a	Deliberation

•		The	Ten	Purposes	for	Executive	Session

•		Checklist	for	Entering	Executive	Session

•		Facing	the	Media:	A	Guide	to	Your	Pending	Interview

•		Simplified	Chart	of	Parliamentary	Procedure















































 
Town of Reading 

Meeting Minutes 

 

Page | 1 

2016-09-22 LAG 

Board - Committee - Commission - Council: 
 

      Permanent Building Committee       Killam School Building Committee 
 

Date:  2024-07-08 Time:  7:00 PM      

 

Building:  Reading Town Hall      Location:  Select Board Meeting Room  

 

Address:  16 Lowell Street Session:  Open Session 
 

Purpose:  General Business Version:  Draft 
 

Attendees: Members - Present: 
 

Chair Carla Nazzaro, John Coote, Chris Haley, Kirk McCormick, Sarah 

McLaughlin (remote), Ed Ross, Greg Stepler, Pat Tompkins, Nancy Twomey 
 

Members - Not Present: 
 

      
 

Others Present: 
 

Colliers Project Manager Shirley Ng (remote), Colliers Project Director Mike 

Carroll, LBA Project Manager Jenni Katajamaki, LBA Architect Leigh 

Sherwood, Town Manager Matt Kraunelis, Assistant Town Manager Jayne 

Wellman, School Superintendent Tom Milaschewski, Doctoral Resident 

Barbara Best, Killam Principal Lindsay Fulton, Director of Facilities Joe 

Huggins (remote), Assistant Director of Facilities Kevin Cabuzzi (remote), 

Mollie O'Keeffe -RMLD (remote); 

School Committee Members: Chair Tom Wise, Vice Chair Erin Gaffen, Shawn 

Brandt (remote); 

Meghan Young, Gena Pilyavsky, Rebecca Bailey, Angela Binda, Jeff Dietz, 

Karen Gately Herrick, Geoffrey Coram, Melissa Murphy (remote), Donna 

Brewer (remote), Eleanor Sedor (remote) 

 
 

Minutes Respectfully Submitted By:  Jacquelyn LaVerde 
 
 

Topics of Discussion: 
 

 

This meeting was held in-person in the Town Hall Select Board Meeting Room and remotely 

via Zoom.  

 

Call to order 

Carla Nazzaro called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 

Roll call: Sarah McLaughlin (remote), John Coote, Kirk McCormick, Ed Ross, Greg Stepler, 

Pat Tompkins, Nancy Twomey, Chris Haley, Carla Nazzaro. 

 

School Committee Chair Tom Wise called the School Committee to order at 7:00 pm. 

Roll call: Sarah McLaughlin (remote), Carla Nazzaro, Shawn Brandt (remote), Tom Wise.  

Erin Gaffen joined the meeting shortly after roll call. 

 

Ms. Nazzaro introduced new member Chris Haley to the KSBC and thanked Karen Gately 

Herrick for all of her work on the Committee.   

 

Public Comment 



 

Page | 2 

Angela Binda of 10 Orchard Park Drive shared draft meeting minutes of the School Building 

Appointment Committee from June 2022.  She stated that she hoped a legal opinion was 

not formed based on draft minutes, and shared her reasons for requesting Karen Gately 

Herrick not be removed from the Committee. 

 

Gena Pilyavsky of 3 Harriman Avenue shared his experience following the process of the 

KSBC.  He expressed his disappointment at Ms. Herrick’s removal by the Select Board and 

questioned the impact of her removal on the project and in the community. 

 

Rebecca Bailey of 17 Forest Glen Road read a statement from her neighbor, Tara Gregory of 

Pleasant Street, who was unable to attend this evening’s meeting, and noted that she 

agreed with the sentiments of the letter.  Mx. Gregory’s letter expressed their discontent 

with Ms. Herrick’s removal and the removal process from the KSBC, and noted Ms. Herrick’s 

contributions to the project. 

 

Meghan Young addressed the Committee and expressed her disappointment with the way 

Ms. Herrick was removed from the Committee.  She encouraged the committee to take the 

appropriate actions and make decisions as a committee not as individuals. 

 

Jeffrey Dietz of 10 Orchard Park Drive expressed his disappointment with the apparent 

politics involved with Ms. Herrick’s removal from the Committee. 

 

Karen Gately Herrick of the Select Board, 9 Dividence Road, stated that she does not 

believe the action to remove her was taken correctly.  She requested that the School 

Building Appointment Committee follow the procedure outlined in the Charter.  She also 

noted that the MSBA says that the applicant should make a reasonable effort to ensure the 

continuity of membership of the School Building Committee for the life of the project. 

 

Ms. Nazzaro stated that it has been difficult balancing the transparency to the committee 

and to the constituents, in addition to meeting the needs of the project, and being 

respectful of those involved. 

 

KSBC Liaison Reports 

No reports. 

 

KartoonEDU Video Content Discussion 

Superintendent Dr. Tom Milaschewski introduced Barbara Best who will be a doctoral 

resident in the district for the upcoming year. 

 

Dr. Milaschewski explained that the intent of the videos created by KartoonEDU is to provide 

factual information about the project, and there is nothing in the videos that can push 

voters one way or another or promote a social agenda.  Dave Kartunen has created such 

videos for several other communities, and will be producing six videos for Reading.  Dr. 

Milaschewski reassured the Committee that the videos will not push for a vote one way or 

another. 

 

Colliers Project Director Mike Carroll noted that the team working on these videos has 

worked with the Attorney General’s Office to ensure there is no bias one way or the other in 

the videos. 

 

Full Pre-K: Under One Roof 

Dr. Milaschewski explained that RISE is the integrated preschool program in the community 

that serves students with and without disabilities.  It is tuition-based, though it is free of 

cost for students with disabilities.  There are ten class sections across three sites: two at 

Wood End, three classes at Killam, and the rest in the basement of the High School.  There 

are 150 students and a waitlist of 64 tuition-based students.  The need is expected to 

increase in the coming years. 

 



 

Page | 3 

Consolidating all RISE classes at the new Killam would benefit the community in several 

ways.  Having RISE under one roof would bring appropriate oversite, ensure consistency in 

curriculum, enable and encourage collaboration across staff, allow staff to more effectively 

allocate resources, streamline administration and support, enhance family engagement, and 

provide easier and better access to support and services that are currently stretched across 

three sites.  It will also benefit the district by opening up two classrooms at Wood End, 

which will help anticipated future enrollment increases and growing student needs; and 

freeing up space at the High School that can be used to expand, and open grant funding 

opportunities for, the Innovative Pathways program. 

 

If consolidated, there will be two additional RISE classrooms at the Killam, which will not 

eliminate the waitlist, but will provide spaces for about 20 to 30 more students. 

 

Designer Report 

LBA Project Manager Jenni Katajamaki stated that the goal for this evening is to reduce the 

number of options.  Tasks completed since the Committee last met include: HVAC system 

selection in process, met with Reading Fire Department on access requirements, and work 

to reduce options to continue to advance the design.  LBA anticipated that the MSBA would 

have completed their review of the PDP a week ago, so the OPM contacted MSBA for an 

update.  Cost estimates are coming up, which is why it is important to reduce the options. 

 

Pre-K Cost Analysis 

Ms. Katajamaki reviewed the total project budget and focused on reimbursable portions of 

the RISE spaces.  Using the compact three-story scheme B1 with full pre-k and scheme B2 

with partial pre-k for comparison the total project cost for B1 is estimated at $117 million to 

$136 million, with the Town share estimated between $79 million and $98 million.  The 

estimated Pre-K cost is between $13.2 million and $16.8 million, with the Town share being 

$8.8 million to $12 million. 

 

Options Reduction Strategy 

Ms. Katajamaki and LBA Architect Leigh Sherwood reviewed the revision criteria for the 

Committee including building height and scale, footprint, internal organization, phasing and 

swing space and Pre-K enrollments.  They also reviewed the floor plans, site plans of the six 

Pre-K options and four partial Pre-K options and asked the Committee to advise which 

options to investigate further.  The Committee discussed and the consensus was to pursue 

options with full Pre-K. 

 

Nancy Twomey made a guidance motion for the designer to further explore 

options B1 and E3, both three-stories, with the new E2 site scheme and full Pre-K, 

which was seconded by Ed Ross. 

Roll call vote: Chris Haley – Yes, Kirk McCormick – Yes, Nancy Twomey – Yes, John 

Coote – Yes, Pat Tompkins – Yes, Ed Ross – Yes, Greg Stepler – Yes, Sarah 

McLaughlin – Yes, Carla Nazzaro – Yes. 

 

Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes 

On a motion by Nancy Twomey, seconded by Pat Tompkins, the Killam School 

Building Committee voted 6-0-3 to approve the meeting minutes of June 17, 2024 

as submitted, with Kirk McCormick, Sarah McLaughlin, and Chris Haley abstaining, 

as they were not present at that meeting. 

Roll call vote: Kirk McCormick – Abstain, Sarah McLaughlin - Abstain, John Coote – 

Yes, Ed Ross – Yes, Greg Stepler – Yes, Pat Tompkins – Yes, Nancy Twomey – Yes, 

Chris Haley – Abstain, Carla Nazzaro – Yes. 

 

Future Agenda Items and Next Meeting Dates 

Members requested a discussion on the removal of member Karen Herrick, a discussion on 

reorganizing, a discussion on the roles and responsibilities of the Committee members and 

the Chair, and discussion on the Appointment Committee, nomination process, and MSBA 

requirements.  The OPM will also be discussing the PSR at upcoming meetings, and will seek 



 

Page | 4 

guidance on whether to pursue the CM At-Risk or Design-Build-Build process for 

construction. 

 

On a motion by Erin Gaffen, seconded by Carla Nazzaro, the School Committee 

voted 5-0-0 to adjourn at 9:18 pm. 

Roll call vote: Sarah McLaughlin – Yes, Shawn Brandt – Yes, Carla Nazzaro – Yes, 

Tom Wise – Yes, Erin Gaffen – Yes. 

 

On a motion by Ed Ross, seconded by Greg Stepler, the Killam School Building 

Committee voted 9-0-0 to adjourn at 9:18 pm. 

Roll call vote: John Coote – Yes, Kirk McCormick – Yes, Sarah McLaughlin – Yes, Ed 

Ross – Yes, Greg Stepler – Yes, Pat Tompkins – Yes, Nancy Twomey – Yes, Chris 

Haley – Yes, Carla Nazzaro – Yes. 




